
 
Agenda for a meeting of the Bradford West Area 
Committee to be held on Thursday, 30 November 2023 
at 5.30 pm in Committee Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford 
 
Members of the Committee – Councillors Alternates - Councillors 
LABOUR LABOUR 
Alipoor 
Amran  
Azam 
Ibrar Hussain 
Kamran Hussain 
Kauser 
Nazir 
Regan 
Shaheen 

Ahmed 
Duffy 
Engel 
Arshad Hussain 
Shabir Hussain 
Lal 
Mohammed 
Mullaney 
Thirkill 

 
 

Notes: 
• This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below. 
 
• The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed 

except if Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered 
by Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be 
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such 
as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes 
to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact 
who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary arrangements are in place. 
Those present who are invited to make spoken contributions to the meeting should be 
aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded. 

 
• If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the 

officer named at the foot of that agenda item. 
 
Decisions on items marked * are not Executive functions and may not be called in 
under Paragraph 8.7 of Part 3E of the Constitution. 
 
From:      To: 
Asif Ibrahim 
Director of Legal and Governance 
 
Agenda Contact: Asad Shah, Committee Secretariat, City Hall, Bradford BD1 1HY 
Phone: 01274 432280; E-Mail: asad.shah@bradford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

mailto:asad.shah@bradford.gov.uk


 2 

 
  
A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS 
 
  
1.   ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34)  

 
The Director of Legal and Governance will report the names of 
alternate Members who are attending the meeting in place of 
appointed Members.   
 
 

 

 
2.   DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST  

 
(Members Code of Conduct – Part 4A of the Constitution) 
  
To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest. 
  
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting. 
  
Notes: 
  
(1)       Members must consider their interests, and act according to the 

following: 
  

Type of Interest You must: 
    
Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests 

Disclose the interest; not participate in 
the discussion or vote; and leave the 
meeting unless you have a dispensation. 

    
Other Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 
OR 
Non-Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

Disclose the interest; speak on the item 
only if the public are also allowed to 
speak but otherwise not participate in the 
discussion or vote; and leave the 
meeting unless you have a dispensation. 

    
Other Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 
OR 
Non-Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

Disclose the interest; remain in the 
meeting, participate and vote unless the 
matter affects the financial interest or 
well-being 
  

(a) to a greater extent than it affects 
the financial interests of a majority of 
inhabitants of the affected ward, and  
  
(b) a reasonable member of the public 

 



 3 

knowing all the facts would believe that 
it would affect your view of the wider 
public interest; in which case speak on 
the item only if the public are also 
allowed to speak but otherwise not do 
not participate in the discussion or 
vote; and leave the meeting unless 
you have a dispensation. 

  
(2)       Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned 

or their spouse/partner. 
  
(3)       Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 

must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.   

  
(4)       Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 

Standing Order 44. 
 
  

3.   MINUTES  
 
Recommended – 
  
That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 October 2023 be 
signed as a correct record (previously circulated). 
  

(Asad Shah – 01274 432280) 
  

 

 

 
4.   INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS  

 
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution) 
  
Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.   
  
Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.   
  
If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.   
  
Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.   
  

(Asad Shah – 01274 432280) 
 

 



 4 

  
5.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

 
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution) 
  
To hear questions from electors within the district on any matter this is 
the responsibility of the Committee.   
  
Questions must be received in writing by the Director of Legal and 
Governance in Room 112, City Hall, Bradford, BD1 1HY, by mid-
day on Tuesday 28 November 2023 
  

(Asad Shah – 01274 432280) 
  

 

 

 
B. BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
  
6.   BRADFORD WEST LOCALITY PLAN - PROGRESS UPDATE 

2022/23  
 
As part of the Council-wide programme of ‘Strengthening Locality 
Working’, Neighbourhood and Community Services worked with other 
Council services and partner agencies to develop five Locality Plans, 
one for each constituency that make up the Bradford District.   
 
The report of the Bradford West Area Co-ordinator (Document “G”) 
gives an update on the progress achieved towards addressing the 
locality-wide priorities set out in the Bradford West Locality Plan during 
2022/23.  
 
Recommended – 
 
(1) The Bradford West Area Committee is invited to comment 

on the Locality Plan – Progress Update 2022/23, as set out 
in Appendix A of this report. 

 
 
(2) The Area Committee requests that the Bradford West Area 

Co-ordinator, accompanied by the Chair of Bradford West 
Area Committee, presents a progress report to the Area 
Committee in 12 months’ time, setting out the progress and 
achievements made for each of the priorities detailed in the 
Bradford West Locality Plan during 2023/24. 

 
(Arshad Mahmood – 01274 432597) 

 
 

1 - 82 

 
7.   YOUTH SERVICE UPDATE - BRADFORD WEST  

 
This report of the Strategic Director, Place (Document “H”) gives an 
update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford West 

83 - 102 



 5 

Area in the past 12 months and outlines the direction of travel for the 
next 12 months. 
  
Recommended – 
  
That the work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford 
West Area as detailed in this report be welcomed. 
  

(Arshad Mhmood – 01274 432597) 
  

  
8.   ALLOCATION OF WEST YORKSHIRE MAYOR'S CLIMATE 

COMMUNITY GRANT SCHEME (BRADFORD)  
 
The report of the Bradford West Area Co-ordinator (Document “I”) 
summarises the applications received from eligible local organisations, 
across the Bradford West Constituency, from West Yorkshire Mayor’s 
Climate Community Grant Scheme (Bradford). 
 
Recommended – 
 
(1) That the Area Committee agree the proposals for the 

funding allocations as outlined at Appendix B. 
 
(2) That the Grants Advisory Group be thanked for their work 

with this funding. 
 

(Arshad Mahmood – 01274 432597) 
 

103 - 
116 

 
THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

Report of the Bradford West Area Co-ordinator to the 
meeting of Bradford West Area Committee to be held on 
30th November 2023 

G 
 
 
Subject:   
 
BRADFORD WEST LOCALITY PLAN – PROGRESS UPDATE 2022/23 
 
Summary statement: 
 
As part of the Council-wide programme of ‘Strengthening Locality Working’, 
Neighbourhood and Community Services worked with other Council services and partner 
agencies to develop five Locality Plans, one for each constituency that make up the 
Bradford District.  This report gives an update on the progress achieved towards 
addressing the locality-wide priorities set out in the Bradford West Locality Plan during 
2022/23.  
 
 
EQUALITY & DIVERSITY: 
 
The Locality Plans are being developed in consultation with a wide variety of partners with 
the aim of ensuring that the voices of all communities in the Locality are heard. This has 
included specific targeting, to ensure the views of minority groups, and those whose voices 
are seldom heard, are engaged in the process. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
David Shepherd, Strategic Director of 
Place 

Portfolio:  Cllr Abdul Jabbar 
 
 

Report Contact: Arshad Mahmood 
Bradford West Area Coordinator  
Phone: (01274) 432597 
E-mail: ash.m@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Neighbourhoods & Community Services 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6/

mailto:ash.m@bradford.gov.uk


 

 

1. SUMMARY 
 

As part of the Council-wide programme of ‘Strengthening Locality Working’, 
Neighbourhood and Community Services worked with other Council services and 
partner agencies to develop five Locality Plans, one for each constituency that 
make up the Bradford District.  This report gives an update on the progress 
achieved towards addressing the locality-wide priorities set out in the Bradford West 
Locality Plan during 2022/23.  
      

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The vision for the Strengthening Locality Working approach is to build safe, strong 

and active localities where citizens and local leaders are empowered to work 
alongside public agencies and partners to address local needs and issues. Working 
collaboratively and creatively, they utilise local assets, resources and opportunities 
to enhance community capacity and tackle inequalities. People are at the heart of 
service design and delivery, and experience coordinated support within their 
localities and only need to tell their story once. A stronger focus on prevention and 
early help promotes better outcomes for local people and helps reduce the need for 
statutory interventions wherever possible. 

 
2.2 To achieve this vision the project advocates a stronger role for Bradford Council 

and its partners as a leader and place shaper, aligning delivery and resources, 
renewing the emphasis on the role of Area Committees, and supporting local 
councillors in their capacity as democratic champions.    
  

2.3  The project has seen the strengthening of resource and capability within 
Neighbourhood & Community Services, including the recruitment of 15 Assistant 
Ward Officers and five Stronger Communities Participation & Engagement Officers 
and a broadening of the role and influence of Area Co-ordinators as convenors of 
place.  
 

2.4 This work is underpinned by developing arrangements for a Council-wide locality 
approach to prevention and early help that promotes collaboration between Council 
colleagues, and with wider partner agencies, to better support individuals, families 
and communities across the district. By prevention we mean, preventing or delaying 
problems from arising in the first place so that everyone across the Bradford District 
– whatever locality they come from – can live a long, healthy, and full life. In turn, 
Early Help is about tackling problems head-on when they emerge, intervening early 
before problems escalate. At the heart of both Prevention and Early Help is a 
constant focus on what’s strong, not what’s wrong. We work closely with 
communities to make the most of their assets, resources and opportunities, 
empowering citizens and local leaders to work alongside public agencies and 
partners to address local needs in a collaborative and creative way. 

 
2.5 This re-dressing of the balance which emphasises an asset-based approach to 

tackling inequalities and neighbourhood issues, alongside the more dominant 
deficit-based model, requires a shift in both thinking and practice which challenges 

Page 2



 

 

existing ways of working and therefore takes time, commitment and support at all 
levels of the organisation, to implement successfully. 

 
This does not, however, mean that one approach is better than the other. Working 
together, assets-based approaches add value to the deficit model by: 
 

• Identifying the range of protective and well-being promoting factors that act together 
to support well-being and the policy options required to build and sustain these 
factors. 

• Promoting citizens as co-producers of well-being rather than simply as consumers 
of services, thus reducing the demand on scarce resources. 

• Strengthening the capacity of individuals and communities to realise their potential 
for contributing to the development of their neighbourhoods. 

• Contributing to more equitable and sustainable social and economic development 
and hence the goals of other sectors. 

 
 

2.6 As this has been the first year of implementing the Locality Plans much of the work 
has been focused around bringing the relevant people together to explore how best 
to address the priorities in the Plan. Work has been done to further develop inter 
agency support and ownership of the themes and priorities, and the action needed 
to address them. 

 
Neighbourhood & Community Services have led on, or contributed to, this work in 
the Bradford West locality which is demonstrated within the Bradford Locality Plan 
and its appendices. 

 
2.7 A key initiative developed by Neighbourhood & Community Services over the past 

year has been a strength-based approach to working with individuals looking for 
prevention and early help support in communities, called ‘Neighbourhood Connect’. 
This takes referrals from people themselves, Neighbourhood Wardens, Councillors, 
Adult Social Care’s Independence Advice Hub and many other sources. Ward 
officers or assistant ward officers then have a strengths-based conversation with 
the person to determine how they could best connect them with services, activities 
and groups in their community to give them the most appropriate support which will 
contribute to their well-being and ability to live a fulfilled life. 

 
2.8  Neighbourhood & Community Services are aware that key performance indicators 

and other appropriate measures of success need to be developed for the priorities 
in the Locality Plans and have acknowledged the over-aspirational nature of the 
goal setting in the original plans.  Work has begun on revising these so that they 
better reflect what is realistically achievable, and this will be continued over the 
current year. The following principles set the overall context for this work and will 
continue to guide the setting of locality priorities: 
• Increase organisational resilience through a common understanding and 

approach to locality working. 
• Evidence outcomes delivered against the Council and District plan priorities. 

Page 3



 

 

• Promote community capacity and improve outcomes to be delivered for 
communities. 

• Reduce inequalities and improve access to support for individuals and 
communities. 

• Allow individuals and communities to access multi-disciplinary early help that 
ultimately prevents/reduces/delays the need for intervention by statutory 
services. 

 
2.9  This work will be informed by, and be undertaken alongside, the development of a 

Neighbourhood & Community Services Prevention & Early Help strategy which will 
set out the ways in which the service currently leads on, and contributes to, 
prevention and early help for individuals and communities, and the future direction 
for the development of the service. 

 
2.10 This report presents a progress update of the 18 locality-wide priorities in the 

Bradford West Locality Plan during 2022-23 (Appendix A). The priorities set out in 
the Locality Plan align with the six ‘priority outcome areas’ that make up the Council 
Plan 2021-25.  

 
2.11 Appendix B contains six Case Studies, one for each of the six priority outcome 

areas, which highlight an example of the nature of the work being done to address 
these priorities in the Bradford West locality. 

 
2.12  The Locality Plan also includes six Ward Plans which set out the priorities and 

outcomes for each of the wards covering the Bradford West Locality. Progress 
against these are reported to Bradford West Area Committee. 

 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Locality Plan sets out an ambitious set of priorities for Bradford Council, 

working with its partner agencies, communities and residents to address over 3 
years. This is building on the important work that Bradford Council and its partners 
have done over recent years. 

 
 
4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 

This work falls within the current budget and resources of the Neighbourhood 
Service and other existing Council and partner agency resources that are available 
for joint working to address the Locality Plan priorities. 

 
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
   
 A key purpose of Strengthening Locality working is to reduce the demand on 

services. 
 
 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 

Page 4



 

 

 
There are no legal implications directly arising from this progress report. Legal input 
provided on the current projects have included advice on grants, procurement and 
subsidy control and further legal input will be provided as required. 

 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

One of the key themes in the Locality Plan aims to increase sustainability across 
the Area. 

 
7.2 TACKLING THE CLIMATE EMERGENCY IMPLICATIONS 
 

Locality approaches should reduce travel. 
 
7.3 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

Community Safety issues will be addressed within the Locality Plan.   
 
7.4 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

No known issues. 
 
7.5 TRADE UNION 
 

No known issues.   
 
7.6 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

There will be positive implications for all Wards in Bradford West if the 
Strengthening Locality Working programme achieves its objectives. 

 
7.7 AREA COMMITTEE LOCALITY PLAN IMPLICATIONS 
 

This report details progress being made to address the 18 priorities in the Bradford 
West Locality Plan. 

 
7.8  IMPLICATIONS FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 
 
 The views of young people have been considered in the development of the 

Locality Plan through a District wide survey and through consultation in Youth Work 
settings. 

 
7.9 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT 
 
 No known implications 
 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 

Page 5



 

 

 
None  

 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 
9.1 Decisions related to Locality Plans are the responsibility of the relevant Area 

Committee. Therefore, this report is presented to the Executive for information, 
discussion and comment.  

 
   

10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 The Bradford West Area Committee is invited to comment on the Locality Plan – 

Progress Update 2022/23, as set out in Appendix A of this report. 
 
 
10.2 The Area Committee requests that the Bradford West Area Co-ordinator, 

accompanied by the Chair of Bradford West Area Committee, presents a progress 
report to the Area Committee in 12 months’ time, setting out the progress and 
achievements made for each of the priorities detailed in the Bradford West Locality 
Plan during 2023/24. 

 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix A: Bradford West Locality Plan – Progress Update 2022/23 
 
 Appendix B: Case Studies 
 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

“Bradford West Locality Plan 2022-25” (Document ‘L’), Bradford West Area 
Committee, 20 October 2022 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

 
Appendix A: Bradford West Locality Plan – Progress Update 2022/23 

 
Insert Powerpoint: 

 
  

Page 7



 

 

Appendix B: Case Studies 
 

 
 

Page 8



Bradford West Locality Plan 2022-25

Progress update – 2022/23

P
age 9



This plan aligns our District and Council plan objectives with local neighbourhoods, it incorporates the direction of travel for our District ensuring 
a strong, healthy and fair society, living within environmental limits, achieving strong, resilient and prosperous communities. This plan brings 
those communities closer together with service providers to plan and deliver better services which meet the needs of the people who use them. 

The localities plan incorporates broad strategic aims in order to deliver tangible actions in neighbourhoods and communities, incorporating 
Bradford's sustainability goals, the JSNA and the cultural strategy working hard towards targeting the inequalities that our communities may 
experience. During the listening and engagement phase of this plan, participants were overwhelmingly clear that we celebrate and grow the 
existing strengths, skills and positivity to build further achievements through a prevention and early intervention ethos.

Bradford West covers a diverse area from Bradford city centre to beyond Thornton and to the Calderdale boundary. We take in urban, suburban 
and rural, residential and industrial areas. It includes well known locations such as the National Media Museum, Valley Parade, Bradford Royal 
Infirmary, St Luke's Hospital, Chellow Dene, Heaton Woods, Listers Mill, Bradford University and College, Lister Park and Museum and Heaton 
Woods. Our mix of communities includes single pensioner households, large families with young children, and people from many different 
religious and cultural backgrounds.

Bradford West incorporates the City centre which is overflowing with investment, growth and restructuring, this undoubtedly has a positive 
impact on the neighbourhoods in Bradford West leading to increased local jobs, opportunity and investment. Parks and open spaces have been 
revitalised through direct Council investment, encouraging healthy lifestyles, ensuring a better mix of play spaces provision close homes, as well 
as destination facilities like the investment in Lister Park. Bradford West has seen recent investment in preventative Mental Health Hubs, 
transformational change in family play and physical activity through the JU:MP programme and the increased connectivity with the West 
Bradford Cycling Superhighway.

This means residents in Bradford West can expect to benefit from clean, green environments. The route improvement programme on the A650 
Bradford Road / Keighley Road / Manningham Lane/Hamm Strasse into a high-quality green route with improvements for buses, pedestrians 
and cyclists, will have a direct positive impact on resident of Bradford West. The introduction of the Clean air zone will result in improved health 
outcomes for residents. In 2021/22 the VCS sector has an uplift of over £270,000 through the Councils ARG fund, investing in sustainability, 
entrepreneurialism and future proofing much needed community buildings.

P
age 10



Definition of Terms

City of Bradford 
Metropolitan District

Localities

Wards  

Neighbourhoods

Locality:
The physical geographies in which locality working is delivered; 
primarily the 5 constituencies of Keighley, Shipley, Bradford West, 
Bradford East and Bradford South. Also known as an ‘Area’. 

Ward:
An administrative division of a locality that elects and is represented by 
3 ward councillors. There are 6 wards per locality and 30 wards in total. 

Neighbourhood:
At sub-ward level, residents may identify with a particular 
neighbourhood e.g. Braithwaite. This is a more informal local structure.

Prevention:
Preventing or delaying problems from arising in the first place so that 
everyone across the Bradford District – whatever locality they come 
from – can live a long, healthy, and full life.

Early Help:
Tackling problems head-on as soon as they emerge, intervening early 
before problems escalate.

There are 3 important levels at which decisions are made 
across Bradford; District, Locality and Ward. Sub-ward level 

neighbourhoods exist through a more informal arrangement.

P
age 11



About the Locality Plan
What is the plan? Why have one? How did we develop it? How do we deliver it? Who’s involved?

• A working document for 
what we want to achieve 
to create as good a quality 
of life as possible for the 
people living here.

• It includes information 
about our strengths, needs 
and issues and informs our 
key local priorities. 

• Some priorities relevant to 
the whole of Bradford 
West locality while others 
are ward specific. 

• It will focus our attention 
on the key strengths and 
challenges in West 
Locality and help address 
them.

• It focusses on prevention 
and early help, so that 
everyone can live a long, 
healthy and full life.

• It makes sure that what 
we do locally is involved 
in bigger plans for the 
District. 

• We used the latest 
local  data and 
intelligence to 
develop local 
priorities. 

• We had a number of 
Priority Setting 
Workshops with a 
range of local voices 
in the room.

• The plans were 
subject to public 
consultation and have 
been agreed by the 
Area Committee. 

• Now we know our 
key priorities, we can 
develop a detailed 
action plan to help us 
deliver them. An 
action log will help us 
track positive impact 
makes sure 
everybody involved 
knows what else we 
need to do.

• The Area Committee 
monitors the plan to 
make sure we’re 
making progress. 

• Everybody living 
in the West 
locality can make 
a difference! 

• We need 
different local 
services and 
organisations 
working together 
with local people 
and 
communities to 
address our key 
priorities.

What are the Bradford District Priority Outcomes (2022-25)?
Better Skills, More Good Jobs and a Growing Economy; Decent 
Homes; Good Start, Great Schools; Better Health, Better Lives; 

Strong, Safe and Active Communities; and a Sustainable District.

P
age 12



Bradford West Locality Priorities
Bradford District 

Priority Outcomes 
2021-25

Locality Wide Priorities 2022-25

Better Skills, More Good 
Jobs and a Growing 
Economy

1. Work with Employment agencies to bridge the skills gap with bespoke support to residents and businesses 
2.   Support Business leaders with sustainability and diversification opportunities with local supply chains
3.  Improve access for micro businesses to training providers to reduce skills gap.

Decent Homes 1. Empower tenants to know their rights to address quality  of private-rented accommodation
2. Develop a locality-based landlord network, to support inform and develop improved rental and HMO properties 
3. Ensure holistic partnership working to support residents through financial and winter pressures.

Good Start, Great Schools 1. Ensure targeted support for young people at risk of Criminal and Sexual Exploitation 
2. Enhance co-produced family assessment and interventions with Youth services and Childrens Early Help
3. Support and learn lessons from the Act locally programme ensuring activity is connected and based on the places our 

children live and learn.

Better Health, Better 
Lives

1. Co-ordinate activity through the Core20plus5 strategy that will target health inequalities. 
2. Integrate priorities of the Community Partnerships into a single locality-based collaborative.
3. Integrate Active Bradford physical activities actions into daily business through successful delivery of JUMP programme

Safe, Strong and Active 
Communities

1. Celebrate and share community strengths across the West Locality 
2. Increase and promote opportunities for resident and communities to lead on local community development 
3. Address issues dangerous driving and high levels of Road Traffic related deaths and injuries

A Sustainable District 1. Work with community and experts to co-produce knowledge and awareness of climate emergency issues.
2. Co-ordinate interventions  to improve recycling, reusing and repair messages.
3. Take a zero-tolerance approach to fly-tipping.

P
age 13



Better Skills, More Good Jobs and a 
Growing Economy

1.  Work with Employment agencies to bridge the skills gap with 
bespoke support  to residents and businesses 

2. Support Business leaders with sustainability and diversification 
opportunities with local supply chains

3.  Improve access for micro businesses to training providers to 
reduce skills gap.

Priorities

P
age 14



Actions

1. Collaborate with partners to identify 
opportunities and processes that exist for 
ensuring that skills initiatives address the 
specific needs of the Bradford West Locality 
and work to highlight the specific needs of 
West.

2. Establish a representative forum of 
local businesses to promote and increase 
joint planning and working in the locality

3. Collaborate with partners, including 
Bradford College, Bradford BID, Made in 
Manningham, BTHFT, DWP and Social 
Enterprises to respond to skills gaps.

Better Skills, More Good Jobs and a Growing Economy
Actions, Outcomes and Progress

Outcomes

1. Stronger involvement in District-wide 
skills initiatives by representatives able to 
voice the needs and issues faced by the 
Bradford West Locality.

2. Well networked grassroots businesses  
engaged and knowledgeable of the 
strategic vision for Bradford.

3. Improved access to upskilling and 
retraining opportunities.

Progress

1. Developing partnership working 
approach with key stakeholders through the 
Area Leadership Team. These include Skills 
House, community facilities and businesses. 

2. Each neighbourhood investigating and 
working with businesses and the Council 
Economic Development Unit to support 
grass root businesses

3. Across all Ward Leadership meetings 
Ward officers are collaborating with key 
partners in their wards to develop 
initiatives and projects to address issues of 
skills gaps as well as emerging with all 
communities in their Wards. Recently we 
have undertaken an initiative with Bradford 
University, who have allocated a space for 
the local students and communities so they 
can work together.   

P
age 15



Decent Homes

1. Empower tenants to know their rights to address quality  of private-
rented accommodation.

2. Develop a locality based landlord network, to support inform and 
develop improved rental and HMO properties. 

3. Ensure holistic partnership working to support residents through 
financial and winter pressures.

P
age 16



Actions

1. Co-ordinate a communication and 
engagement project which enables quick and 
easy access for tenants to a single point of 
access, for, help advice and guidance.

2. Establish a Bradford West  network of 
private landlords, linked with industry 
experts.

3. Build on strong relationships with VCE, faith 
and business organisations to respond 
collectively with a co-ordinated offer of warm, 
dry spaces for vulnerable individuals and 
families.

Decent Homes
Actions, Outcomes and Progress

Outcomes

1. More tenants particularly from minority 
backgrounds who know what the 
minimum levels of housing condition 
should be and where to ask for help.

2. Increased sharing of good practice, 
collaboration and uplift numbers and 
variety of good quality housing.

3.   Specifically help to families and 
individuals who will be adversely impacted 
by the Financial and fuel crisis.

Progress

1. Working with Social Housing providers 
across Bradford West locality to support 
their tenants providing help guidance and 
advice regarding gaining access to social 
housing. We have worked with 
Incommunities, Yorkshire Housing, 
Manningham Housing Association, Places 
for People, Accent Housing and Horton 
Housing

2. Private Sector Housing have developed a 
Bradford District working group to 
investigate options of supporting the 
Private Sector.  Currently in process of 
rating each private rented property for 
energy efficiency. 

3. Working with local community 
organisations through combined funding 
process to support families

P
age 17



Good Start, Great Schools

1.Ensure targeted support for young people at risk of Criminal and 
Sexual Exploitation 

2.Enhance co produced family assessment and interventions with 
Youth services and Childrens Early Help

3.Support and learn lessons from the Act locally programme ensuring 
activity is connected and based on the places our children live and 
learn.

P
age 18



Actions

1. Working in partnership with West Yorkshire 
Police and Safer Communities Partnership at a 
localities level directing targeted interventions 
at families and children identified as most at 
risk. 

2.  Co-ordinate the joint resources, 
experience and knowledge of  the Youth 
Service and Early help childrens teams to 
identify and support families in need.

  
 3. Supporting and working alongside the Act 
Locally programme to positively  impact the 
Mental Health of Children in Bradford West.

Good Start, Great Schools
Actions, Outcomes and Progress

Outcomes

1. Best possible co-ordinated prevention 
and early intervention support for families 
with Children who are at risk.

2. Improved communication and 
partnership working between partner 
agencies in having a positive impact on the 
lives of children, young people and their 
families. 

3. Co-ordinated  early intervention 
systematic approach to supporting children 
and young people experiencing poor 
Mental Health support.

Progress
1.  Area Leadership Teams working closely with 
partners to reduce exploitation of young people 
and children. Recently been supported by 
Serious Organised Crime funding to support 
local community organisations in developing 
early help and prevention models.
 
2. Work by Bradford West Youth Officers is 
having a positive impact arising from improved 
communication or partnership working through 
projects like Youth in Mind and Ward 
Leadership Teams. Working with key partners 
from Bradford West Family Hub, Social Services 
and the Bradford West Neighbourhood Policing 
Team.

3. Through Act Locally the voice of children and 
young people is being heard and acted upon by 
key partners.

P
age 19



Better Health, Better Lives

1.Co-ordinate locality activity through the Core20plus5 strategy that 
will target health inequalities. 

2.Integrate priorities of the three Community Partnerships in to a 
single locality based working collaborative.

1.Integrate Active Bradford physical activities actions into daily 
business through successful delivery of JUMP programme

P
age 20



Actions

1.  Collaborate on a locality wide work plan 
that incorporates Act as One , living well, 
Partnerships for People Place, Mental health 
hubs and JUMP work streams in Bradford 
West Locality 

2.  Firmly establish the Bradford West 
Community Partnership Collaborative, with 
shared priorities, activities, processes and 
mutual support.

3.  Deliver the 2 commissioned  JU:MP co-
ordinator projects, establish sustainable joint 
activities group, uplift local greenspaces for 
physical activity and increase levels of 
physical activity in local families 

Better Health, Better Lives
Actions, Outcomes and Progress

Outcomes

1. Increase access to timely and inclusion 
support for lifestyle choices, including  
information ensuring successful work is 
built on rather than duplicated

2. Ensure a system wide approach to 
undertaken to address health inequalities 
within Bradford West to support service 
users, PCNS and communities address their 
mental health and physical needs using a 
prevention approach.

3. Integrate physical activity into a system 
wide way of working, including delivering 
behaviour change with in all communities. 

Progress
Locality working has allowed all three 
Community Partnerships, Quadrant, Together for 
Health and Horton City Health and JU:MP 
collaboratives to projects for communities across 
Bradford West. These include, Sports activities 
for children, Maternity circles, Community Health 
checks, Community Road Show, around Young 
Parent and Families, Family Crisis Support for 
those in most need of financial support and 
mental health support and Men’s Mental health. 

We are working with enabler programmes, 
Wellbeing Hubs, Bradford West Family Hub, 
Digital inclusion team, Living well, Stronger 
Communities and Reducing Inequalities 
Managers.

Bradford West are successfully delivering on the 
two commissioned JU:MP projects. Green
 spaces highlighted and plans in place for legacy 
developments which will support local 
communities becoming more physically active.

P
age 21



Safe, Strong and Active Communities

1.Celebrate and share community strengths across the West Locality.
 
2. Increase and promote opportunities for resident and communities 
to lead on local community development projects. 

3. Address issues of dangerous driving and high levels of Road Traffic 
related deaths and injuries.

P
age 22



Actions

1. Promote  ‘People Can’ and citizen led 
initiatives and the work done in Bradford 
West by local residents, VCS, Faith and 
business groups as models of good practice 
and sustainability. 

2. Lead on work that is strengths based and 
which celebrates ‘what’s strong’ in our 
neighbourhoods. Celebrate and share 
learning from community activist and activity.

3.  Work in collaboration with WYP, Highways 
teams, and Safer Roads teams to develop a 
programme of information, awareness and 
prevention

Safe, Strong and Active Communities
Actions, Outcomes and Progress

Outcomes

1. Benefit from an increase in people 
engaging and  leading civic participation 
and community led change.

2. Communities achieve more from  
community-led initiatives which connect 
the assets within the community and lead 
to an increase in more sustainable positive 
improvements in those neighbourhoods 
and communities.

3. Residents are aware of the action that is 
being taken to address Anti social Driving 
and feel more confident to report their 
concerns.

Progress

1. Across Bradford West we have developed  
‘People Can’ projects with key partners, 
Police, Ward Councillors, Community Groups, 
Schools, Health Partners, theses have 
included litter picks, unadopted back street 
projects, allotment projects, Speed Watches 
etc

2. Held a  Bradford West Community Stars 
event. Celebrated some ‘legends’ of the past 
community work in Bradford West. Also 
celebrated the current community centres 
and the work they do and did to get their 
communities through COVID and Cost Of 
Living.

3. Working in partnership with Highways, 
Police, Wardens, Councillors, Wardens, 
businesses and residents to deliver projects 
such as ‘Eid’ and ‘Bonfire period’, ensuring 
communities area safe.

P
age 23



A Sustainable District

1.Work with community and experts to co produce knowledge and 
awareness of climate emergency issues.

2.Co-ordinate interventions to improve recycling, reusing and repair 
messages.

3.Take a zero tolerance approach to fly-tipping.

P
age 24



Actions

1. Ensure all of our communities from every 
background are aware of the impact of 
Climate change and the critical actions they 
can take, both big and small to become more 
sustainable. 

A Sustainable District Actions, Outcomes and 
Progress

Outcomes

1. Cleaner and better looking local 
environment

2. More households recycling more items

3. More individuals and groups involved in 
growing food 

Progress

We have supported schools in Braford West 
to apply for the Bradford Clean Air Schools 
Programme (CASP) the £500,000 fund 
offered grant of £250 to £10,000 per 
school. Some of the projects applied for 
included, relocation of seating and play 
areas away from roads, ventilation and air 
filtration, behaviour change programmes, 
providing bespoke information such as air 
quality monitoring and walking maps
Green Infrastructure. 

We have also support sustainability through 
grant programme for Climate Change for 
local community organisations.

Projects carried out across Bradford West 
are cross cutting and impact sustainability.

Sustainable development should be a cross-cutting priority and principle 
underpinning all of the action taken in regard to the previous five themes.

P
age 25



Clayton and Fairweather Green 

Locality Plan

2022-25

P
age 26



Ward Priorities – Clayton and Fairweather Green
Bradford District 

Priority Outcomes
Ward Priorities – Clayton and Fairweather Green

Better Skills, More 
Good Jobs and a 
Growing Economy

1. To establish mini employment & education hub where there is a need.
2. To bring community providers together to improve residents employability chances.
3. Connecting and encouraging new communities to use local providers and facilities to gain the skills to secure a local job. 

Decent Homes 1. Explore partnership working between local communities and policymakers to address flooding.
2. Work with private sector housing and social housing providers to improve poor housing stock.
3. To work with partners to look at different ways to improve awareness and relations between communities and partners. 

Good Start, Great 
Schools

1. To work with local schools to set up active groups to raise awareness, develop ideas and implement practical solutions.
2. Work with community organisations to share resources and promote existing social networks for children and families.
3. Support Bradford West family hub in improving levels of development for children in early years including parental 

support.

Better Health, Better 
Lives

1. Promote and signpost people to accessible support services and sessions.
2. Support community organisations as providers of age-friendly networks.
3. Develop a partnership approach with a focus on prevention and early intervention to improve mental wellbeing and 

resilience. 

Safe, Strong and 
Active Communities

1. Encourage community activities promoting civic pride.
2. Support and encourage young people to talk to services and build relationships and trust in a safe environment.
3. Work with the Police to build and strengthen community relationships and look at ways to encourage more reporting and 

feedback to residents. 

A Sustainable District 1. Promote awareness and provide practical tips to help residents make a change.
2. Promote and support communities to be cleaner and greener.
3. Identify suitable locations and look at practical measures for on-street charging points.

P
age 27



Actions
1. To establish mini employment & education 

hubs taking services to where the need is, 
such as Thornaby Hub.

2. Identify providers who can work with Young 
People who are at risk of becoming NEET.

3. To support new and emerging communities to 
gain skills to secure local jobs.

Better Skills, More Good Jobs and a Growing Economy
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Clayton and Fairweather Green

Outcomes
1. Deliver several sessions with partners 
and Thornaby Hub Centre Manager. 

2. Information advice worker to deliver 
several sessions. 
  
3. To explore community surgeries/advice 
sessions in community settings. 

Progress 
1. Successful ARG Business Grant Funding. 
Appointed local Centre Manager for 12 months 
25 hrs/5 days. this has led to running successful 
for residents. 
  
2.  Developed a partnership approach with the  
Employment Co-ordinator for in communities to 
the Clayton Warm Spaces Network to arrange 
attending venues to support anyone who is 16 
plus to find employment, over a 3-month period.
 
3.  English for Everyone Programme delivered in 
several community venues across Bradford. 236 
learners participated in Bradford West.
JK Singh (Incommunities Employment Co-
ordinator). Investigating options to trial a session 
at Thornaby Hub/Event to start building 
relationships. 
Agreed to refer individuals and let the Co-
ordinators know of any events that they can 
attend.

P
age 28



Actions
1. Encourage partnership working between local 
residents and policy makers to make improvements on 
the impact new housing has on flooding and local 
infrastructure. 

2. Encourage and support service providers to bring 
properties, including empty homes into good repair.

3. Develop an ongoing programme of information and 
engagement highlighting the ways residents can 
engage and influence long term population and 
regeneration planning.

Decent Homes
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Clayton and Fairweather Green

Outcomes
1. To receive alerts and hold community meetings at the 
earliest opportunity when new housing development 
applications are submitted. To identify funding for flood 
preventative measures, such as the becks to cope with 
increased surface water from new housing developments 
and climate change, flood resilience grants for individual 
homes, and consider including conditions in approved 
planning applications that will prevent further flooding, 
such as planting more trees to help regulate temperature by 
cooling overheated urban areas, which can reduce flood risk 
by absorbing surface rainwater, etc. 

2.  Engage more with Social Housing providers, such as 
Accent, Incommunities, Premier and Muir Housing to 
improve homes. Explore the opportunity with 
Incommunities and Accent, the main social housing 
providers in delivering regular advice sessions in community 
hubs.

3.  Hold regular awareness days to give practical energy 
efficiency tips, information and advice to improve energy 
rating of homes on uninsulated homes, new windows, etc, 
and support residents living in poverty

Progress 
1. Flood resilience grants and flood defence systems in place for 
individual homes on Middlebrook View, Crescent & Way. Ward 
officers worked with land drainage, local resident and Councillors 
to inform, co-ordinate and support residents in applying for the 
grant. There were 15 household grants processed.

Area office to work closely with land drainage regarding flood 
preventative measures to allow the becks to cope with increased 
surface water during heavy rainfall.

2. Meeting with Incommunities to build closer links with 
Councillors and Ward office to look at the increased number of 
enquiries Councillors receive at their surgeries, from the 
Thornaby Estate. The priority for Incommunities tenants is 
housing advice regarding bedroom tax.

3.Positive relations made with Accent Housing officer & 
Councillors re: Clervaux & Badsworth Courts. Some partnership 
work taken place with the Police re: ASB issues & accessing the 
courts. Regular Ward Leadership Team meeting held with 
housing association , youth services, police to develop a 
partnership approach in dealing with issues on Clervaux and 
Badsworth Court.

The  Money Matters team project Thornaby Hub Centre Manager 
to gain an understanding of how they can assist with the area re: 
debt advice & resolution, food parcels & warmth packs. Sara 
Bates to make contact 

P
age 29



Actions
1. Develop a network/forum to support
Initiatives with and in Schools to raise awareness 
on emerging issues that are a priority to the local 
community.

2. Continue the legacy of JUMP and BiB 
interventions to initiate practical projects 
supporting long term behaviour change in young 
people, schools and families on physical and 
mental health improvement.

3. Work with the Early years’ prevention and 
intervention hub, to support young families, and 
children. 

Good Start, Great Schools
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Clayton and Fairweather Green

Outcomes
1. Set up active working groups with local 
schools to address local priorities.

2 .Mapping & sharing of existing social 
networks that provide and support children 
and families.

3. Mapping & sharing of local activities, out of 
school support and other local events.

Progress
1. After damage to local farmer’s walls, pupils 
prodding sheep, injury to livestock from litter. 
Cow Close footpath (thoroughfare from Low Lane 
(Clayton to Beckfoot Thornton school 
(Thornton)/cross ward partnership) – regular fly 
tipping issues. Working alongside, schools and 
ward officers to organise litter picks.

2. Bradford West Family Hub have been doing 
outreach work to provide support to children and 
families in Clayton Fairweather Green.

3. Road safety team attended assemblies to give 
Educational Talks and highlight the dangers to 
foster further discussions with their parents. 
Banners on the school fencing are rotated with 
messages re: parking safely.
Site visits with the road safety officers to identify 
additional road safety measures. 
Ward office arranged 3 days of action with the 
Parking Wardens, Police and school caretakers. 
23 parking charge notices (PCNs) were issued.

P
age 30



Actions
1. Alongside the Community Partnership 
use Health networks to invest in early 
intervention and prevention projects to 
directly impact older people isolation, 
physical health and mental wellbeing.

2.  Facilitate the delivery of living well 
projects using local knowledge and 
expertise.

3.  Improve mental wellbeing and
resilience of adults and children through a 
partnership approach to prevention and 
early intervention with education 
providers, NHS, the police and the 
voluntary and social sectors.

Better Health, Better Lives
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Clayton and Fairweather Green

Outcomes
1. Mapping of projects, activities & 
events for older residents who are 
vulnerable and at risk of isolation, by 
promoting via all platforms to reach as 
many residents as possible, not just 
social media. Identifying the gaps for 
future funding/new projects through 
the Community Partnership and 
Primary Care Network.
 
2. To explore the option of street 
champions or age-friendly networks 
where there is a need or gap to provide 
support for vulnerable & isolated 
residents, befriending service, or other 
activities.

 

Progress
1. Quadrant community partnership are 
working together to invest in early 
intervention, partners include 
community centres, NHS, GP’s, Area Co-
ordinators office and the youth service 
who work closely with CAHMS who 
support young people experiencing 
poor mental health, or difficult feelings 
or experiences.
 
2. Clayton Warm Spaces Network 
established 12 September ’22 to 
provide a warm space & activities for 
families across 6 venues in Clayton. 
 

P
age 31



Actions
1. Create opportunities for residents to 
take part in community and civic life and 
strengthening leadership. 

2.  Support and encourage young people to 
talk to services and providers to help 
understand needs and build better 
relationships and trust in community settings.  

3.  By working with WYP increase trust in 
uniformed services and decrease the fear of 
crime through community engagement, 
outreach and collaborative projects with local 
community organisations.

Safe, Strong and Active Communities
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Clayton and Fairweather Green

Outcomes
1.  To encourage and support residents to 
come together and actively improve their 
local environment by volunteering as a 
street champion, help as a neighbourhood 
watch co-ordinator, set up a community 
group, get involved in organised activities, 
such as clean-ups, reporting issues.
 
2. To build relationships & trust with 
residents on the Thornaby estate/hub and 
work closely with the new Community 
Centre Manager. NB. Need to provide 
activities, support or initiatives for 5 to 11 
years.

3. Police neighbourhood support officer 
and other services to support and 
encourage residents to come together and 
get involved to make those improvements.

Progress
1. Developing courses at Thornaby Hub to 
support residents in developing their 
neighbourhood. Working in partnership in 
with housing associations to engage their 
tenants in community activities. 

2. Holiday activity funding bid successful at 
Thornaby Hub to facilitate activities over 
the summer break including family 
fundays. 

3. Through days of action the police and 
other services build positive relationships 
with residents, to come together, get 
involved to make progressive changes to 
their and for their community. 

P
age 32



Actions
1. Raise awareness in local communities of 
the impact of the climate emergency on the 
lives of people in Clayton & FWG, using 
appropriate communication and engagement 
tools, so that it does not seem like a distant 
problem. 

2.  Support communities to reduce, reuse 
and recycle principle, to support the climate 
emergency.

3.  Expand the network of electric vehicle 
charging points and number of electric 
vehicles.

A Sustainable District
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Clayton and Fairweather Green

Outcomes
1.  To deliver  no of awareness days with key 
partners, such as Incommunities on climate change 
& recycling by providing practical tips and 
information on reducing fuel costs, energy 
consumption (poor insulation & help households 
access funding to improve energy efficiency), 
reduce, reuse & recycle in community venues??
  
2.  Identify locations and work with partners to 
plant more trees, particularly where flooding is an 
issue, and improve green spaces, through initiatives 
such as ‘Tree for every child’ to plant more than 
55,000 new trees, one for each primary school 
pupil.
 
3.  Identify suitable locations that can install and 
support electric vehicle charging points and look at 
practical measures for on-street charge points, such 
as kerb build out or plinth or lampposts. Some 
authorities have introduced channels for the cables 
along the footpaths where individual properties 
have charging points to prevent a hazard/trip. Work 
with Planning to add charging points to new  and 
change of use applications.

Progress
1. Neighbourhood wardens and the recycling 
team have visited clayton primary school and 
Crossley hall school and given talks around 
environmental issue and recycling.

2. Plans were made with Dixons Allerton school 
on Rhodesway for trees to be planted 

3. InstaVolt Charging Station has been built on a 
new shopping complex so when people go 
shopping, they can charge their cars. The 
planning rules for installing charge points will 
depend on whether the dwelling has off-street 
parking or on-street parking. If you have off-
street parking, you will likely be able to install a 
home charger under permitted development 
rights, this may change if you live in a 
conservation area or listed building Permitted 
development rights do not extend to on-street 
parking, in these circumstances you will be 
required to apply for planning permission.

P
age 33



City Ward

Locality Plan

2022-25

P
age 34



City Ward Priorities  
Bradford District 

Priority Outcomes
Ward Priorities – City Ward

Better Skills, More Good 
Jobs and a Growing 
Economy

1. Mapping/training job support and promote employability projects
2. Regenerating business areas; Great Horton Road and Ingelby Road
3. Connecting BAME communities with educational and job opportunities 

Decent Homes 1. Improve the environment inner city areas by supporting & educating residents on taking responsibility for their gardens and streets. 
2. Work with private sector/social landlords to improve property standards to support vulnerable communities, reduce overcrowding. 
3. Support energy efficiency measures across city ward, focusing on the most vulnerable communities. 

Good Start, Great Schools 1. Support Schools to open on evenings and weekends and use the resources for the community.
2. Work with schools to educate pupils on civic roles and responsibilities. Combating issues, littering/fly tipping and climate change.
3. Working with public health, Schools, local community groups and organisations to tackle malnutrition in children.
4. Schools and faith organisations to work in partnership in supporting young peoples education and development. 

Better Health, Better Lives 1. Tackle Inequalities in access to NHS services  such as GP and Dentist, focus on supporting the online booking systems.  
2. Improve health and well being by supporting local initiatives around health. 
3. Improve the environment to enable a healthier life style.

Safe, Strong and Active 
Communities

1. Work on ASB issues. Target hot spot areas including City centre, Great Horton Road/Summerville Road, Ivanhoe Road. 
2. Improve youth engagement and education. Supporting businesses in developing business watches. 
3. Support communities in developing people can initiatives including Friends of Groups, Litter picking Neighbourhood watches 

A Sustainable District 1. Target complex streets, provide a holistic approach to solutions in areas such as, Frank Street and Summerville Road 
2. Provide information and support regarding the Bradford Clean air zone being introduced in 2022 which  will reduce emissions.
3.  Support development and accessibility of green spaces for physical activity and health and wellbeing.
4. Facilitate affordable, eco friendly housing improvements.

P
age 35



Actions
1.Mapping/training job support in the 
community to improve access to the 
jobs market. 

2. Regenerating business areas;
• Great Horton Road
• Ingelby Road
Ensuring local businesses and residents 
are involved in the process. 

3. Connecting members from emerging 
minority communities with educational 
and job opportunities. 

Better Skills, More Good Jobs and a Growing Economy
Actions, Outcomes and Indicators – City

Outcomes
1. Increased number of adults in full 
time employment. 

2. Visitors feeling safer and more 
welcome when shopping. Creating a 
more vibrant experience. 

3. Increased members from 
emerging minority communities 
accessing training and getting 
employment opportunities. Working 
with partners like Connecting Roma. 

Indicators
1. Engagement data and increase in 
referrals to training providers. 

2. Increase in footfall. Survey Data, 
Business Conversations

3. Employment statistics, community 
conversations

P
age 36



Actions
1. Adopt a multi-agency approach to inner 
city housing where environmental issues 
persist. Work with wardens, recycling staff 
and PCSO’s to ensure landlords and tenants 
are aware of their responsibilities. 

2. Take action against private and social sector 
landlords whose properties are neglected and 
have rubbish in gardens. Promote the Council 
app for reporting fly tipping and problematic 
properties. 

3. Work with charities and home 
improvement companies to improve energy 
performance within City ward.  Support 
householders most in need to get grants and 
upgrades they may be eligible. 

Decent Homes
Actions, Outcomes and Indicators – City

Outcomes
1. Tenants/Landlords are aware of their 
responsibilities and increased confidence 
to engage with uniform staff. 

2. Improve pride in the local area, including 
gardens and streets. More residents aware 
of reporting methods and taking 
responsibility for their neighbourhood. 

3. Improve energy efficiency amongst 
households. Better eco ratings in City ward 
and reduction in emissions. 

Indicators
1. Community spirit, number of 
engagements and feedback.  

2. More feedback/reporting,  improved 
appearance of the neighbourhood and 
resident feedback. 

3.  More up to date and environment 
friendly households. Reduced energy 
consumption and better standards of living. 

P
age 37



Actions
1. Council wardens and 
officers/partners deliver projects  in 
schools around local issues which 
affect the community and Civic roles.

2. Use Schools/faith centres as 
community hubs and look at evening/ 
weekend opening times to cater for 
individuals otherwise unavailable. 

3. Explore and support networking 
opportunities for schools/community 
groups  to work in partnership to 
address key issues being faced by 
children and local communities. 

Good Start, Great Schools
Actions, Outcomes and Indicators – City

Outcomes
1. Create a generational change and 
engage more young people to be 
part of community work. 

2. Maximising community resources 
by opening on evenings and 
weekends. Engaging with 
parents/children otherwise 
unavailable. Targeting hard to reach 
residents. 

3. Better links between schools. 
Improved access to resources.

Indicators
1.  Young people engaging  with 
initiatives , session data

2. Young people’s feedback 
improvement in attainment levels.

3. Families supported and active 
children

4. Joint workshops, meetings and 
collaboration.  

P
age 38



Actions
1. Introduce health champions to 
volunteer with key surgeries/Dentists 
to support with online booking forms 
and triage, especially with those that 
may not be computer literate. 

2. Work closely with faith groups and 
community centres to support projects 
that tackle vulnerable groups with 
communities. 

3. Work with partners to set up health 
initiatives, referral and signposting of 
residents to public health programmes 
i.e. with food charities/community 
groups/ schools to support families 
facing food poverty.

Better Health, Better Lives
Actions, Outcomes and Indicators – City

Outcomes
1. More people able to book online 
appointments, more equality in 
accessing NHS services.

2. More people taking part in 
physically activities. Improved 
physical/mental health

3. Healthier and informed residents 
across all communities.

4. More chances for people to take 
responsibility for their own health
Increased opportunities to engage in 
an active lifestyle

Indicators
1. Increase number of online 
appointments. 
Engagement with people attending 
sessions
Residents engaging with 
consultations around health and 
well-being and wider determinants of 
health.

2. People taking part in activities 
accessing outside spaces.

3. Number of people interacted with 
and signposted. Number of programs 
and groups. 

P
age 39



Actions
1. Identify ASB and drug crime hotspots 
and develop a partnership approach to 
tackle these long term issues. Developing 
neighbourhood plans to tackle these 
issues.  
  
2. Work with businesses along Great 
Horton Road to develop and promote 
Business Watch. 

3. Work with the youth service to give 
young people a voice in their locality

4. Use social media, Facebook, Twitter 
and Instagram to promote Area Office 
work to help set up more: friends of 
groups, litter picks and neighbourhood 
watches. 

Safe, Strong and Active Communities
Actions, Outcomes and Indicators – City

Outcomes
1. Better quality of life, safer 
neighbourhood
More residents aware of how to report 
concerns, reduced issues with parking, 
off road vehicles, dangerous driving.

2. Better relationships with businesses 
and understanding of some of the 
issues they face, develop ideas for 
regeneration 

3. Young people more involved in their 
community.

4. More community cohesion and 
participation. Promotion of ‘People 
Can’ 

Indicators
1. Crime statistics, ASB incidents 

reported.

2. Number of meetings, number of 
participants. 

3. Young people engaging in sessions 
/activities

4. Increased number of groups. 

P
age 40



Actions
1. Support local groups involved with 
projects to improve the outside 
environment. Improve green spaces – 
bringing derelict areas into use. Work with 
groups to develop green spaces for the 
use of community allotments. 

2. Work with charities and government to 
improve EPC rating of properties in City 
ward by providing free eco upgrades. 
Using our social media platforms to 
advertise the benefits. 

3. Work with partners and residents to 
develop projects that increase recycling.
Engage partners to improve ‘grot-spots’ 
and work with residents to look at 
sustaining improvements.

A Sustainable District
Actions, Outcomes and Indicators – City

Outcomes
1. More people using green spaces

2. More eco-friendly properties on the 
district. 

3. Increase in numbers of people 
participating in initiatives. 
Improvement in recycling rates/physical 
appearances of neighbourhoods. 
Increase in local pride and willingness 
to report fly tipping/waste issues.

Indicators
1. Number projects/activities taking 
part on green spaces.

2. Increase in energy performance 
score

3. Improved Recycling rates, 
promoted campaigns, reduction in 
reports of fly tipping, increased ‘grot-
spots’ cleared, more residents 
involved in clean-ups.

P
age 41



Heaton

Locality Plan

2022-25

P
age 42



 Ward Priorities  
Bradford District 

Priority Outcomes
Ward Priorities – Heaton Ward

Better Skills, More Good 
Jobs and a Growing 
Economy

1. Mapping/training job support projects 
2. Regenerating Bradford West business areas including;
        • Keighley Road
        • Howarth Road
3.    Support Young People to get qualifications and get better jobs working with partners including Incommunities, university, college and  schools. 

Decent Homes 1. Work with local partners including the council energy efficiency support such as warmer homes team, Incommunites and local charities. 
2. Good and supportive infrastructure for local communities when new developments are built. 
3. Support private tenants/landlords who let out sub standard properties and not eco friendly.  

Good Start, Great Schools 1. Council policy on food and working with NHS – Community Health Partnerships to make a long term plan to tackle obesity/ diabetes prevalent in 
some communities in Bradford 

2. Support young people to achieve the qualifications needed to secure a job
3. Support Schools to open on evenings and weekends, develop projects alongside jump to improve health and activity amongst young people. 

Better Health, Better Lives 1. Tackle Inequalities in accessing health services - Public Health to ensure gaps on service provision are met and accesses to local services are 
maintained. 

2. More work/education and enforcement on environmental issues such as fly tipping and working with schools to change behaviours. 
3. Promote Healthy lifestyles by increased publicity supported by jump project.

Safe, Strong and Active 
Communities

1. Support communities to develop community groups and take ownership of their neighbourhood and issues affecting it. 
2. Develop on community cohesion and work with community/faith for better integration. 
3. Build confidence in community services and develop face to face engagement within local communities.

A Sustainable District 1. Encourage more recycling and liaise with local businesses to reduce waste. 
2. Work closely with schools/community groups/residents/businesses  to help support initiatives and raise awareness on emerging issues, such as 

climate change and environmental matters.

P
age 43



Actions
1. Map what is available for training and skills 
across Heaton Ward. Promote employability 
initiatives, support community enterprise - 
upskilling people in neighbourhoods, linking 
in with Skills and Employability Services.

2. Support business areas with improvements 
to make areas more attractive and safer 
example set up businesses watches and 
business forums to support the developments 
in the area.

3. Support hubs to develop Initiatives which 
enable members of emerging communities to  
access training/education and employment.

Better Skills, More Good Jobs and a Growing Economy
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Heaton

Outcomes
1. List of support services and venues that 
provide training and advice, which show 
gaps and opportunities for training 
support.

2. Held forums with residents and business 
owners feel safer and making these areas 
more attractive for investment.

3. Establish accessible training session with 
training providers.

Progress 
1. We charted the Heaton Ward to establish 
training sessions with an accredited training 
provider, CECOS. Once the gaps were identified 
we linked up CECOS with Frizinghall Primary 
School and skills house to deliver training 
programs in a familiar community environment 
that was used by local families. 

 2. Engaged with local business around how to 
make the area look more tidier to make 
investment better in the area. Held a public 
meeting with residents and business around 
ASB issue on Haworth road with police and 
Alison Lowe (Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime). 

 3. Through the Heaton Ward Leadership we 
have developed a project with CECOS and put 
them in touch with schools and community 
centres to start running projects within those 
local settings. 

P
age 44



Actions
1. Develop an ongoing programme of 
information and engagement highlighting the 
ways residents can engage and access energy 
efficiency advice and support

2. Encourage partnership working between 
residents and policy makers to make 
sustainable  improvements when developing 
new housing schemes in Heaton Ward.

3. Encourage and support service providers to 
bring properties, including empty homes into 
good repair, support landlords and tenants.

Decent Homes
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Heaton

Outcomes
 1. Residents better understand what is 
available for making their homes more 
energy efficient and services have a vehicle 
to engage with local people in Heaton. 

2. Social and Private Housing providers 
regularly engage with local communities to 
ensure their developments are sustainable 
and meeting the needs of the local 
community.

3. Area will improve both environmentally 
and aesthetically. And working between 
partners. 

Progress 

1. We set up a partnership with local councillors, 
Home Group and Incommunities to look at 
initiatives to improve housing standards regarding 
energy efficiency lighting etc. We have also taken 
part in joint days of action, working in 
collaboration to ensure we are able to engage 
with residents from multiple agencies. 

2. We set up a strategic group with private sector 
housing to investigate options to improve housing 
standards in Heaton. We are also Coordinating 
community clean ups with Home Group and 
residents to ensure a clean visible environment.  

3. Environmental Wardens and Enforcement 
Officers have worked closely to identify 
properties that required enforcement action and 
worked with landlords to make changes. There 
are also better reporting mechanisms for issues 
relating to Incommunities properties on Lynnfield 
Estate. 

P
age 45



Actions
1. Support Public Health and Community 
Partnership to make a long-term plan to tackle 
obesity/ diabetes prevalent in some communities 
across Heaton Ward.

2. Support children achieve educationally high 
standard's by utilising out of our schools, 
community centres for education and developing 
links with schools and faith organisations to see 
how both can support eachother and children.

3. Promote active lifestyles for young people in 
and out of school – work with the JU;MP project.

Good Start, Great Schools
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Heaton

Outcomes
1. Resident will have access and additional 
support they need to tackle obesity and 
diabetes

2. More options for children to learn outside 
school hours. Faith organisations and schools 
and learn from eachother and provide better 
opportunities for children to do well.

3. Greater partnership working and more 
sessions including play opportunities for 
children across Heaton Ward.

Progress
1. JU:MP project in Frizinghall looking at re 
designing the MUGA so that local school 
children can use this for PE lessons. This will 
then also allow local resident to use this on an 
evening and weekend.

2. In Upper Heaton we are working in 
partnership with the schools to design a new 
play area for residents and young people. 
School children have been consulted on what 
they would like in the park. 

3. Consultation work taking place to identify 
potential snickets for Active Travel in Heaton 
and Frizinghall to encourage walking and 
physical activity. Partnership work with 
Frizinghall Community Centre and Frizinghall 
Primary School to create a sustainable long-
term plan for the  Multi Use Games Area. 

P
age 46



Actions
1. Work in partnership to tackle Inequalities in 
accessing health services – in partnership with 
Public Health ensure gaps on service provision are 
met and accesses to local services are maintained. 

2. Develop partnership work through the 
Enforcement Team to carry out increased 
enforcement on environmental issues such as fly 
tipping and work with partners such as with 
schools to change behaviours.
 
3. Develop marketing campaign to promote 
healthy lifestyles across Heaton Ward through the 
JU;MP project.

Better Health, Better Lives
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Heaton

Outcomes
1. Mapping, sharing a greater connectivity to 
local services. 

2. Further enforcement action against fly-
tippers and behaviour change through schools. 
Result in better areas to live in and thrive both 
physically and mentally.

3. Work with partners to explore age-friendly 
networks that improves physical and mental 
wellbeing.

Progress 
1. Working in partnership with NHS to bridge 
the gap in hard to reach communities and 
address some of the health inequalities in 
Frizinghall by having Health checks at 
community centres. 

2. Wardens have done workshops within 
schools to educate them on environmental 
issue and around clean air campaign. 
Enforcement team and Wardens have carried 
out Duty of Care checks on Keighley Road and 
Highgate to ensure businesses are aware of 
their responsibility. 

3. Developing short videos highlighting work 
between Area Office and groups like Upper 
Heaton Working Together who are focused on 
healthy living and growing vegetables and 
plants, improving metal and physical wellbeing. 

P
age 47



Actions
1. Create opportunities for residents to take part 
in community and civic life and strengthening 
community leadership.

2. Support and encourage all communities to take 
part in community activity to support their area.

3. Will work with Public services to increase trust 
and engagement in services. Develop 
collaborative projects between local community 
organisations and public services. 
 

Safe, Strong and Active Communities
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Heaton

Outcomes
1. Developed community groups, linked 
groups with services, promoted civic 
opportunities i.e. School Governors, 
Volunteers etc.

2. Develop on community cohesion projects 
opportunities for residents form different 
communities to support eachother i.e. 
Community litter picks. 

3. Developed Neighbourhood Watch’s, 
environmental projects, business watch’s 
youth projects etc.

Progress 
1.  We have increased our volunteers in the 
Heaton Ward through the “people can” 
campaign and have linked them with Citizen Coin 
to ensure volunteers are rewarded for their 
work, this has created scope for further work 
with the new generation of volunteers. 
2.  We have several groups in Heaton focused on 
regular litter pick campaigns and improving the 
appearance of their neighbourhoods by planting 
flowers etc.  Area Office have continued to 
facilitate such groups by providing litter picks 
and networking new groups with those already 
existing. 
3.  Through Ward leadership meetings we 
identified a need for more collaborative working 
between services to ensure better engagement. 
We are working with the NHS to develop an 
Allotment off Haworth Road using resources 
from the NHS and the Area Office to involve local 
primary schools and create a lasting impact with 
young people. 

P
age 48



Actions
1. Develop re-cycling projects with schools 
and businesses – Re-cycling Engagement 
Officers to carry out days of action in areas 
across Heaton. 

2. Develop partnership across Heaton Ward 
with schools/community groups/residents 
and businesses to highlight and improve 
issues for the Ward. 

A Sustainable District
Actions, Outcomes and Indicators – Heaton

Outcomes
1. Encourage more recycling and liaise 
with local businesses to reduce waste.

2. Partnership to raise issues and explore 
problem solving approaches to identified 
concerns and support initiatives and raise 
awareness on emerging issues, such as 
climate change and environmental 
matters.

Progress 
1.More events and activities raising 
awareness about the impact of climate 
change * Area Office working with wardens 
and recycling teams in areas where we have 
had reports of high poor recycling. 

2.Improved recycling targets and less litter 
* Waste and Recycling Team, Area Office, 
Neighbourhood Wardens. Taking both 
wardens and recycling team into school to 
do educational work with children and 
doing litter picks with the children.

P
age 49



Manningham 

Locality Plan

2022-25

P
age 50



Ward Priorities – Manningham
Bradford District 

Priority Outcomes
Ward Priorities - Manningham

Better Skills, More 
Good Jobs and a 
Growing Economy

1. Support & encourage local businesses to develop networking and information sharing platforms within Manningham.
2. To bring community providers together to improve residents employability chances.
3. Connecting and encouraging new communities to use local providers and facilities to gain the skills to secure a local job. 

Decent Homes 1. Explore changes to the current planning system to address cramped living conditions.
2. To work with partners to look a different ways to encourage residents to report and seek advice on local issues.
3. Work with private sector housing to improve property standards and focus on landlord responsibilities.

Good Start, Great 
Schools

1. Work with community organisations to share resources and provide further support to help educational underachievement.
2. Schools and faith organisations to work in partnership in supporting young peoples education and development. 
3. Work with partners to refer potential female role models to develop leadership skills through mentoring programmes.

Better Health, Better 
Lives

1. Support the Act Locally programme, alongside partners to improve access to health initiatives. 
2. Promote the use of local open spaces and parks, specifically to improve mental health and wellbeing
3. Support schools to be accessible out of hours and look at ways to utilise their resources for community use.

Safe, Strong and 
Active Communities

1. Encourage community activities promoting civic pride.
2. Encourage local communities to come together and become actively involved in their streets by working together to address 

and report local issues.
3. Work with the Police to build and strengthen relationships with local residents to increase the trust in uniformed services. 

A Sustainable District 1. Promote awareness of Environmental issues amongst residents, including ways to make a change.
2. Provide information and support regarding the Bradford Clean air zone being introduced in 2022 to reduce carbon emissions.
3. Promote and support local action towards a cleaner and greener environment.

P
age 51



Actions
1. Establish Business Forums in key 
areas: Manningham Lane, Oak Lane, 
Lumb Lane, Carlisle Road & White 
Abbey Road. 

2. Identify providers of job skills support 
and work with key businesses (who 
have corporate social responsibility) to 
improve residents employability 
chances.

3. To support new and emerging 
communities to gain skills to secure 
local jobs.

Better Skills, More Good Jobs and a Growing Economy
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Manningham

Outcomes
1. Mapping of businesses within 
Manningham to investigate the 
options of setting up business 
forums.

2. Identify/develop mentoring 
programmes &  practical 
sessions/workshops for young 
people.

3. To explore community 
surgeries/advice sessions in 
community settings. 

Progress 

1.  The ARG and creatives streets project brought businesses 
together to improve Manningham Lane/Oak Lane. The area office 
co-ordinated walk abouts with relevant officers and the business to 
discuss the changes they would like. The community centres worked 
alongside the businesses and took ownership of the planters and in 
organising any events/street parties. 

2.  Through the ward leadership meetings we have worked closely 
with Skills House who are developing and supporting young people 
finding work. They are working closely with the youth service, by 
delivering sessions at the Bradford West Youth Café.
- The youth service are working with partners to help opportunities 
for young people in finding work they enjoy. The youth service run 
CV building  workshops and could work with individuals.

3. Working in partnership with all those who have attended the 
Ward Leadership meeting we have developed ways to engage new 
and emerging communities. 
English for Everyone Programme delivered in Manningham. 82 
Learners participated in the Manningham programme.
 - Meridian Centre delivered the language classes and enrolled 156 
students. 

P
age 52



Actions
1. Work with Private sector housing and social 
housing organisations to look at a collaborative 
approach to high quality affordable social and 
private sector housing, by supporting local 
landlords.

2. Work with local communities and partners to 
identify unsafe, abandoned properties, in order to 
encourage and enforce responsibilities of owners.

3. Collaborating with partners to identify the 
inequalities of Covid-19 that further impact on the 
availability and viability of safe, decent and 
appropriate housing.

Decent Homes
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Manningham

Outcomes
1. Address overcrowded/cramped homes 
and improve better housing standards and 
health. 

2. Better and safer housing standards.

3. Explore a licence scheme for private 
landlords to improve housing standards & 
stop fly tipping when a tenancy changes.

Progress
1. Working with Social housing providers in 
Manningham to discuss how we could work 
closely in order to  address and improve the 
health and housing standards for their tenants.  
Regular walk abouts and street audits have 
been carried out with officers and housing 
associations. 

2.  Partnership working Manningham Housing, 
In communities and Yorkshire Housing and 
housing standards to look at standard of 
homes. Also looking at the homes surrounding 
to make the environment clean and safe.

3.  A strategic private sector housing group has 
been established to support and improve 
housing standards. We will investigate the 
option of implementing a licensing scheme for 
private landlords.  

P
age 53



Actions
1. Develop a network of out 
of school, home-schooling 
and religious organisations 
delivering extra-curricular 
activities.

2. Create a programme to 
increase, promote and 
support the development of 
Women led.

3. Prioritise women led 
Physical health and 
wellbeing programmes.

Good Start, Great Schools
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Manningham

Outcomes
1. Mapping & sharing of after 
school homework clubs. Further 
support to help educational 
underachievement.

2. Mentoring programme via 
mosques/ schools with local 
young professionals.

3. Greater uptake by women to 
develop their leadership skills, 
through the mentoring 
programmes.

Progress
1. Improved knowledge of out of hours school activities has been developed by 
working with schools, youth services and youth centre.

2.  A successful  application to JUMP made by Street Space to deliver the Safer 
Snickets project in Manningham.  The ward  office worked in collaboration with 
Hollings youth Association 3 protentional locations. A group of young girls aged 
11-14 attending the local Mosque and Hollings youth association  expressed an 
interest in the project workshops involved mapping the most common routes 
they take on a day-to-day basis. They shared comments about how they feel at 
different times of the day using these routes and created mood boards of 
inspiring images to shape the snicket. 
The local Mosque and Schools were consulted on the project and the final 
design was chosen.
The girls also gained a real-life experience in community engagement and 
public realm design and received a certificate for their participation in this 
innovative programme. 

3. Mannignham JUMP project have increased the participation of women and 
girls in physical activity. This project involved employing and providing 
volunteering opportunities for local women and girls developing and leading.

P
age 54



Actions
1. Alongside the Community 
Partnership use Health networks to 
invest in early intervention and 
prevention projects to directly impact 
older people isolation, physical health 
and mental wellbeing.

2.Invest in local outdoor green 
spaces, making them more inviting, 
appropriate and useable by all sectors 
of the community.

3. Recognise prevention and early 
help are important to change long 
lasting health inequalities, Use the 
lessons learnt form JUM:P and BiB 
interventions and support the 
behaviour change in young people, 
schools and families.

Better Health, Better Lives
Actions, Outcomes and Progress  – Manningham

Outcomes
1. Mapping, sharing & greater 
connectivity to local services. 

2. Improved more inviting spaces. 
Greater Connectivity and sharing of 
community spaces.  

3. Healthier, Happier communities 
living longer. 
 

Progress
1.  Warm Spaces (renamed as Welcoming Space for Summer 2023) 
safe, friendly, local places where anyone can spend time for free 8 
warm spaces in Manningham have been set up.
Neighbourhood Connect established April ’23 to connect vulnerable 
residents to local services.

2.  Links made with community associations to support with delivering 
services for children and young people in the area. 
Jump Greenspaces Developments on St Michael’s Recreational 
Ground and Drummond Road field. Design consultation completed 
and works to commence in July 2023.
Grosvenor Park development commenced June ’23. ZA to co-ordinate 
an open day on 2.7.23.
Carlisle Road pocket park improvements complete 2023.

3.  Health fair/events held across Manningham to support the 
community getting health checks done without having to attend their 
GPs Locality working with Together for Health and Jump has allowed 
us to develop health and wellbeing projects in collaboration to 
support local communities.

 

P
age 55



Actions
1. We will work to empower communities, so we 
do things with them not for them, encouraging 
positive early intervention and preventative 
projects, identifying collective resources, 
encouraging collaboration including establishing 
local social media networks and street champions.
 
2. Create opportunities for residents to take part 
in community and civic life and strengthening 
leadership. We will nurture and grow a resilient 
and vibrant voluntary and charitable sector, 
including having readily available information that 
allows active citizens to report, issues, in easily 
and accessible manner.
 
3. By working with our WYP increase the trust in 
unformed services and decrease the fear of crime 
through a community engagement, outreach and 
collaborative projects with local community 
organisations.

Safe, Strong and Active Communities
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Manningham

Outcomes
1. Regular partnership/community 
walkabouts.  Support to set up community 
organisations.

2. Increased community participation by 
building relationships and supporting 
communities to proactively take pride 
where they live. 

3. To explore community surgeries/advice 
sessions in community settings. 

Progress 

1.  Area Office colleagues are trained in Asset 
Based Community Development (ABCD) 
approaches.  This helps us support communities 
in forming groups and developing community 
led initiative. Walkabouts with residents carried 
out across Manningham to build positive 
relationships with residents.

2. Identified community connectors develop 
community led initiatives to which community 
clean ups, days of actions for parking and idling 
around schools. The area office supported grass 
route groups to be constituted.

3. In partnership with the police we have 
successfully supported the local communities 
with Anti-social behaviour for example Temple 
Street, Hollings Road and North Avenue.

P
age 56



Actions
1. Raise awareness in local communities of 
the impact of the climate emergency on the 
lives of people in Manningham, using 
appropriate communication and Engagement 
tools, so that it does not seem like a distant 
problem.
 
2. Help households access resources, 
information and knowledge to improve 
energy efficiency in the home.
 
3. Support communities to reduce, reuse and 
recycle principle, to support the climate 
emergency.

A Sustainable District
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Manningham

Outcomes
1.  Information/Engagement days with 
partners & local schools to reduce parking 
& idling outside schools.

2.  Deliver information/practical solutions 
to have a greater understanding. 

3.  Better understanding of the impact of 
food waste, fly tipping and recycling.

Progress 

 1.  Through partnership working with the 
police, road safety team and wardens we 
established educational workshops which were 
held at the primary schools for children, the 
information also been sent to parents, days of 
actions held at school pick up and drop of times 
to educate parents and carers about the 
impacts of idling and dangerous/illegal  parking. 
The Area Office provided information regarding 
Clear Air Zone Funding resulting to several 
successful bids.

2. Cost of Living information booklet delivered 
across Manningham. Arwa office supported 
groups to apply for cost-of-living fund resulting 
to several successful applicants.

3. Neighbourhoods wardens deliver education 
sessions Aswell as delivering information packs 
in hotspot areas. Working closely with the 
enforcement team to act against fly tipping in 
Manningham.

P
age 57



Thornton and Allerton Ward

Locality Plan

2022-25

P
age 58



Ward Priorities – Thornton and Allerton
Bradford District 

Priority Outcomes
Ward Priorities – Thornton and Allerton

Better Skills, More Good 
Jobs and a Growing 
Economy

.1.Support young people to achieve the qualifications/experience/skills/apprenticeships needed to secure jobs.
 2. Support and develop initiatives to increase adult employability and overcome barriers to work
3. Regenerate shopping areas.

Decent Homes  1. Promote Home Energy Efficiency Schemes, Grant improvement programmes, Green Homes and low carbon emissions. . 
 2. Empower residents and tenants, to raise issues around housing quality.
 3.Take action against owners and tenants whose properties and surrounding areas are not maintained .

Good Start, Great Schools 1. Increasing schools  links with VCS and community projects, focusing on civic mindedness.
2 Support the development of better use of school and community assets.
3.Support initiatives tackling inequality issues that impact on a child’s ability to learn

Better Health, Better Lives 1. Improve Health and Well Being  by supporting initiatives that tackle inequalities in accessing health services. 
2.. Work alongside partners to promote/ improve access to  outside spaces/sports facilities/activities/groups.
3.Support local initiatives around health

Safe, Strong and Active 
Communities

1. Support initiatives to ensure people feel safe in the community
2.Celebrate diversity, heritage, culture and togetherness  in local areas and promote a sense of local pride
3.Encouraging more people to be involved in and take ownership of  their local area via volunteering and community engagement

A Sustainable District 1. Support appropriate development with adequate resources.
2.Promote sustainable and affordable transport initiatives
3.Promote and support local action towards a cleaner and greener environment

P
age 59



Actions
1.  Promote employability initiatives  based in 
the community. Supporting community 
enterprise - upskilling people in 
neighbourhoods.

2.  Support young people to achieve 
qualifications/experience/skills/apprenticeshi
ps needed to secure a job. In collaboration 
with Bradford College, secondary schools, 
Youth Service, VCS and Skills and 
Employability Services CBMDC. 

3.  Ensure Local and Independent voices are 
involved in regeneration of shopping areas.

Better Skills, More Good Jobs and a Growing Economy
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Thornton/Allerton

Outcomes
1.  Increased number of adults enrolled on 
employment and skills programmes. 
Individuals better skilled and more work 
ready
 Individuals more prepared for the working 
environment and working routines, 
Increased and varied skills.

2. Increased number of young people  
engaged in training, education or 
employment.

3. More vibrant shopping areas.
Increase in use. Safer space for visitors.

Progress
1. Mapping - Who is offering what support 
where. Community Groups/faith 
organisation and other groups. Ward 
Officers attending DWP complex needs 
hubs and developing drop-in sessions. 
There are now regular sessions at 
Weymouth centre. Working with St James 
to develop regular information/advice 
sessions at their weekly food pantry.

2. Youth Service supporting young people 
to access employment and life skills training 
at St James. Working with St James/Urban 
Saints/Rooted In, to look at using St James 
Coffee shop to run practical training 
sessions for young people.
3. In consultation with businesses more 
bins/benches/planters were installed on 
Allerton Road and  South Square.

P
age 60



Actions
1.  Engage with householders and provide 
information on home energy efficiency 
schemes and grants– domestic energy 
efficiency support. 
Work in partnership with housing providers to 
review energy efficiency of properties and 
support upgrades where necessary.
2.  Take action against private and social 
landlords whose properties and surrounding 
areas are not maintained. 
 Support tenants groups/networks.
 Support walkabouts with social housing 
providers and partners.
Promote reporting methods for tenants. 
3.  Work with wardens/enforcement to 
educate landlords tenants on their 
responsibilities.
 Promote methods of reporting waste 
management issues.

Decent Homes
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Thornton/Allerton

Outcomes
1.  More households adopting energy 
efficiency improvement plans for their 
home / property.
More households upgrading to energy 
efficiency measures.
More social housing properties maintained 
to a decent standard

2.  More people staying in the same house 
and not moving – less transiency.
Improved pride in home/gardens/local 
area.
More people living in decent homes and in 
better neighbourhoods. 
More tenants/residents actively engaging 
in housing issues/initiatives.
More tenants and resident’s groups.
3.  Decrease in fly tipping/rubbish in 
gardens.

Progress
1.  Supporting a number of organisations to 
run sessions with Yorkshire Energy Doctor 
and provide energy efficiency savings to 
residents including South Square, Café west 
and St James .

2.  Wardens and enforcement team working 
across the ward. Regular site visits with 
Residential Social Landlords (RSLs). Working 
with enforcement taking action against RSLs 
if necessary. Working to identify tenant’s 
groups in the ward.

3. Working closely with Incommunities and 
Waste management  to look at waste 
management issues at Rosemary gardens. 
Wardens regularly attending community 
centres, complex needs hub at café west  to 
engage with residents and promote how 
residents can report issues.

P
age 61



Actions
1. Work  with school’s/community groups to 
help support initiatives and raise awareness 
on emerging local and national issues.
  Ensure projects are in place to develop the 
youth voice.

2. Council wardens/officers/partners deliver 
projects in schools around issues which affect 
the local community.

3. Explore and develop links between schools 
and services to tackle inequalities such as HAF 
and JUMP. Developing networking 
opportunities for schools/community groups  
to work in partnership.

Good Start, Great Schools
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Thornton/Allerton

Outcomes
1. More cohesive programmes of activities 
at a local level to support young people of 
all ages.

2. Increased number of young people 
engaged and involved in wider community 
action projects. 

3. Betters links between schools. Improved 
access to resources.  Families access 
support services. 

Progress
1.  Support youth services work in Beckfoot 
Thornton. Worked with schools for  The 
Bradford  Spring Clean/Recycling week. 
Worked with St James church/youth service 
to develop life skills sessions over the 
summer and are  looking at expanding the 
sessions.

2. Wardens delivering sessions in schools as 
part of world for work events. Developing 
joint work with Beckfoot Thornton school. 
Including doing litter picks with the pupils. 
Road safety work with the police at Leytop 
Primary.

3. Ward officer attends the Local School 
Committee to work with the school to 
develop partnerships with the local 
community.

P
age 62



Actions
 1. Work with partners to set up health 
initiatives.
Referral and signposting of residents to public 
health programmes.
Work with food charities/community groups/ 
schools to support families facing food 
poverty.
 Support statutory/voluntary organisations to 
design services and sessions to meet the 
health needs of their communities, focusing o 
early prevention.

2. Support local sports clubs through 
initiatives such as JUMP.

3. Promote local health champions/living well  
at GP surgeries.

Better Health, Better Lives
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Thornton/Allerton

Outcomes
1. More chances for people to take 
responsibility for their own health.
Increased  opportunities to engage in an 
active lifestyle.
Improved physical and mental well- being.
More choice in health activities.
People participating in positive lifestyle 
activities.
More residents accessing health activities 
or activities that positively impact health.

2. More people taking part in physically 
activities.
Improved physical/mental health.

3. Easier to access health services.
Increase use of health services.

Progress
1.  Support work of Community Health 
partnership. Set up and develop Men's 
Shed in Allerton (St Peters Church) – look to 
deliver one in Thornton at St James Church. 
Supporting resident access local services  
through Neighbourhood connect referrals.
Support St James food pantry,  developing 
partnership with other agencies to provide 
support to users.

2.  Supporting youth service football 
sessions and summer tournament. 
Regularly meet and support local 
community groups supporting them with 
funding and linking up. Supporting local 
football clubs with funding.

3. Supporting delivery of  living well with 
groups, community centres in the area.

P
age 63



Actions
1. Identify ASB and drug crime hotspots and 
develop a partnership approach to tackle 
these long term issues. Promote methods of 
reporting ASB and other crime. Together with 
partners develop a plan to deal with the 
problem of  vehicle ASB.

2. Work with partners to build confidence in 
statutory services by having a visible presence  
in local communities. Promote activities  and 
groups which encourage residents to take 
pride in their area  and develop a sense of 
ownership. Support community groups that 
support vulnerable groups/ individuals.

3. Work alongside community to run 
activities/events that promote greater 
understanding of our diverse cultures.

Safe, Strong and Active Communities
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Thornton/Allerton

Outcomes
1. Better quality of life. Safer 
neighbourhood, More residents aware of 
how to report concerns Safer streets, less 
issues with parking, off road vehicles, 
dangerous driving.

2. Increased trust in statutory services
Increase in reporting of crime and other 
issues. Greater sense of community. A 
more inclusive neighbourhood.

3. Young people more involved in their 
community. Greater community cohesion.

Progress
1. Working with police, partners, 
councillors to identify hotspots. Supporting 
the development of contact points- other 
ways of reporting. Vehicle ASB regular 
partner meeting, developed and delivered 
plan to secure access points to Allerton 
Village Green. Work with police to do 
speed watches.

2. Wardens and Officers attend local 
events, groups and schools. Support Police 
drop in points/public meetings.

3. Thornton litter picks, community litter 
picks sandy lane, Kenilworth house. 
Working to set up Men's Sheds groups in 
Allerton and Thornton. Support St James 
food pantry café west. Working with 
CABAD to develop network/support 
session for community groups.

P
age 64



Actions
1. Work with officers/partners to support the 
appropriate development on green/brown 
field sites with adequate infrastructure.

2. Work with key organisations to deliver 
initiatives for alternative and affordable 
‘transport’. Explore Citizen Coin for use on 
public transport.

3. Support greener environments with a focus 
on eco-friendly activities/projects/ownership 
of greenspaces working with local groups, 
schools, and VCS. Work with partners and 
residents to develop projects that increase 
recycling. Engage partners to improve ‘grot-
spots and work with residents to look at 
sustaining improvements.

A Sustainable District
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Thornton/Allerton

Outcomes 
1. Environmentally appropriate 
development projects.

2. More people being more connected 
and confident in being able to travel 
across the area. More people opting for 
more sustainable methods of travel. 
More eco-friendly projects developed 
across local neighbourhoods. 

4. Increase in numbers of people 
participating in initiatives.
Increase in recycling rates/physical 
appearances of neighbourhoods.
Increase in local pride and willingness to 
report fly tipping/waste issues.

Progress
1. Supporting Root-in in to develop to 
community led sustainable housing project 
in Allerton.

2. Wardens run sessions in schools,  litter 
picks with schools/community 
groups/residents
Schools work-wardens/officers
Support friends of Royd park
Community litter picks
Warden patrols
Recycling education

3. Worked with recycling team demo 
recycling bins etc at café west and 
Weymouth centre sessions with local 
schools.

P
age 65



Toller Ward

Locality Plan

2022-25

P
age 66



Toller Ward Priorities – 
Bradford District 

Priority Outcomes
Ward Priorities – Toller

Better Skills, More Good 
Jobs and a Growing 
Economy

 1.Access to appropriate volunteering/Jobs/ Employment skills/training opportunities.
 2.Support initiatives which enable young  people to achieve the qualifications/skills/experience needed to secure a job.
 3. Regenerate shopping areas.

Decent Homes  1. Promote Home Energy Efficiency Schemes, Grant improvement programmes, Green Homes and low carbon emissions. . 
 2. Empower residents and tenants, to raise issues around housing quality.
 3.Take action against owners and tenants whose properties and surrounding areas are not maintained .

Good Start, Great Schools 1. Increasing schools  links with VCS and community projects, focusing on civic mindedness.
2 Support the development of better use of school and community assets.
3.Support initiatives tackling inequality issues that impact on a child’s ability to learn such as: obesity, deprivation and physical health

Better Health, Better Lives 1. Support initiatives that tackle inequalities in accessing health services. 
2.. Work alongside partners to promote/ improve access to  outside spaces/sports facilities/activities/groups.
3. Improve health and well being by supporting local initiatives around health.

Safe, Strong and Active 
Communities

1. Support initiatives to ensure people feel safe in their community.
2.Celebrate diversity, heritage, culture and togetherness  in local areas and promote a sense of local pride.
3.Encouraging more people to be involved in and take ownership of  their local area.

A Sustainable District 1.Support initiatives  to Improve the outside environment/green spaces. 
2.Work closely with partners on emerging issues, such as climate change and environmental matters.
3.Promote and support local action towards a cleaner and greener environment

P
age 67



Actions
1. Promote employability initiatives based in the 
community.
  Support community enterprise - upskilling 
people in neighbourhoods, linking in with Skills 
and Employability Services CBMDC, VCS 
Promote other services, complex needs hubs 
which tackle issues around barriers to work.

2. Support young people to achieve the 
qualifications/experience/skills/apprenticeships 
needed to secure a job. In collaboration with 
Bradford College, secondary schools, Youth 
Service, VCS and Skills and Employability Services 
CBMDC.

3. Support Initiatives which enable members of 
emerging communities to  access 
training/education and employment.

4. Ensure Local and Independent voices are 
involved in regeneration of shopping areas.

Better Skills, More Good Jobs and a Growing Economy
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Toller

Outcomes
1.  Increased number of adults enrolled on 
employment and skills programmes.

 Individuals better skilled and more work ready
 Individuals more prepared for the working 
environment and working routines
Increased and varied skills.

2. Increased number of young people  engaged 
in training, education or employment.

3. Increased no of members of emerging 
communities accessing training education and 
getting into employment.

4. More vibrant shopping areas.
    Safer space for visitors.

Progress
1.  Complex needs hubs- working with DWP to 
develop support sessions in Toller at the Girlington 
centre.  to develop more sessions in Toller. They are 
now running drop in sessions at Toller Youth café. 
Skills House are developing and supporting young 
people finding work. They are working closely with 
the youth service, by delivering sessions at the Toller 
Youth Café.

2.  The youth service are working with partners to 
help opportunities for young people in finding work 
they enjoy. The youth service run CV building  
workshops and could work with individuals. 
Developed  project with youth service supporting 
eastern European yp into employment.

3.  Supported development/implementation of 
Bradford Roma Strategy
4. In consultation with businesses through ARG 
funding bins/benches/planters were installed on 
Duckworth Lane, Toller Lane, Lilycroft Road. 
Improving the area to attract more business. 
Lilycroft nursery  planting up planters are going to 
maintain them with Warden’s support.

P
age 68



Actions
1. Engage with householders and provide 
information on home energy efficiency schemes 
and grants– domestic energy efficiency support. 
Work in partnership with housing providers to 
review energy efficiency of properties and 
support upgrades where necessary.

2. Take action against private and social landlords 
whose properties and surrounding areas are not 
maintained. 
 Support tenants groups/networks.
 Support walkabouts with social housing providers 
and partners.
Promote reporting methods for tenants. 

3. Work with wardens/enforcement to educate 
landlords tenants on their responsibilities.
 Promote methods of reporting waste 
management issues. 

Decent Homes
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Toller

Outcomes
1. More households adopting energy 
efficiency improvement plans for their home / 
property.
More households upgrading to energy 
efficiency measures.
More Social housing properties maintained to 
a decent standard.

2.  Improved pride local area including homes 
and gardens.
More people living in decent homes.
More tenants/residents actively engaging in 
housing issues/initiatives.

3.  Improvement to the areas outside 
environment.

Progress
1. Supporting Girlington Community centre to 
run energy advice sessions for residents. 
Working closely with RSLs 
Accent/Incommunities. Including walkabouts 
around Girlington/Lilycroft .

2. Supporting the Landlords tenants waste 
management booklet. Wardens regularly 
attend community  events/groups also patrol 
the area and  engage with residents and 
landlords to promote ways they can report 
waste.

3. Working closely with wardens and 
enforcement officers to ensure rubbish in 
gardens and fly tipping is reported and dealt 
with.

P
age 69



Actions
1. Work  with school’s/community groups to help 
support initiatives and raise awareness on 
emerging local and national issues.
  Ensure projects are in place to develop youth 
voice. 

2.  Council wardens and officers/partners deliver 
projects  in schools around local issues which 
affect the community.

3. Explore and support networking opportunities 
for schools/community groups  to work in 
partnership.

4. Explore and develop links between schools and 
services such as Jump/HAF.
Support partners to deliver accessible food 
projects.

Good Start, Great Schools
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Toller

Outcomes
1. More cohesive programmes of activities at a 
local level to support young people of all ages.

2. Increased number of young people engaged 
and involved in wider community action 
projects. 

3. Betters links between schools. Improved 
access to resources.

4. More families accessing support services.
More active children.

Progress
1. Ward Officers working with youth service 
supporting provisions in the area and developing 
future provisions. Wardens/ward officers 
delivering sessions in schools including litter 
picks/planting up planters. Girlington/Ladyroyd, 
Lilycroft, St Philips primary schools

2. Working with partners on School Streets, 
Girlington/St Philips primary, Greener Girlington 
supporting them in recruiting and supervising the 
volunteers. Supporting Greener Girlington with 
developing Britannia green space and 
consultations with local schools.

3. Supporting the delivery Of JUMP; including  
development of Jump sessions in schools. Co-
ordinate and run Jump JAG meetings which 
schools /community groups attend.

4. Support groups to access HAF. Supported 
Girlington Community Centre (GCC) and St Philips 
Church to get funding and deliver project.

P
age 70



Actions
 1. Work with partners to set up health initiatives.
Referral and signposting of residents to public 
health programmes. 
Work with food charities/community groups/ 
schools to support families facing food poverty.
Support statutory and voluntary organisations to 
design services and sessions to meet the health 
needs of their communities, focusing on early 
prevention.

2. Support local sports clubs and initiatives such as 
JUMP.

3. Promote local health champions at GP 
surgeries.

Better Health, Better Lives
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Toller

Outcomes
1. More chances for people to take 
responsibility for their own health. Increased 
opportunities to engage in an active lifestyle. 
Improved physical and mental well- being. 
Choice in health activities. People participating 
in positive lifestyle activities. More residents 
accessing health activities or activities that 
positively impact health.

2. More people taking part in physically 
activities.
Improved physical/mental health.

3. Easier to access health services. Increase use 
of health services.

Progress
1. Promotion of RIC – projects. Developed - school 
streets  project with Girlington/St Philips schools 
closing the road and encouraging pupils to walk to 
school. Worked with partners to deliver 
community health checks events at GCC. 
Consulting with residents and FOWP, identified 
need for outdoor gym in west park – led of design 
and successful funding applications - Supporting 
youth service with school’s sessions.

2. Supporting local football clubs to access 
funding and access to school playing fields.  
Supported organisations to develop projects 
through JU:MP. Worked with local boxing gym to 
get funding and organise sessions for residents.

3. Supporting Community Health Partnerships, 
Core 20 plus 5 and Living Well – identify and 
deliver against local health priorities. Worked with 
food charities/community groups/ schools to 
schools' access funding and deliver support to 
families facing food poverty.

P
age 71



Actions
1. Identify ASB and drug crime hotspots and 
develop a partnership approach to tackle these 
long term issues. Promote methods of reporting 
ASB and other crime. Together with partners 
develop a plan to deal with the problem of  
vehicle ASB.

2. Work with partners to build confidence in 
statutory services by having a visible presence  in 
local communities. Promote activities  and groups 
which encourage residents to take pride in their 
area  and develop a sense of ownership.

3. Support community groups that support 
vulnerable groups/ individuals. Work with the 
youth service to give young people a voice in their 
locality. Work alongside community to run 
activities and events that promote greater 
understanding of our diverse cultures.

Safe, Strong and Active Communities
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Toller

Outcomes
1. Better quality of life. Safer neighbourhoods.
More residents aware of how to report 
concerns.
Safer streets, less issues with parking, off road 
vehicles, dangerous driving.

2. Increased trust in statutory services
Community  members more able to report 
crimes and other issues. Greater sense of 
community.

3. A more inclusive neighbourhood. Young 
people more involved in their community. 
Increase in community pride and 
understanding.

Progress
1. Worked with the police to identify hotspots. Looked 
at this for Serious Organised Crime project and 
supported police in doing surveys. Developed  and 
supported Bonfire ASB hubs/activities. Led on action 
plan for school parking issues at BBG school with 
partners.

2. Wardens/ward officers regularly attend community 
events . Support statutory services make better links 
with community organisations. Support greener 
Girlington to develop the group and get more local 
residents onto its board. Organise community litter 
picks and support residents who regularly litter pick.
Supported Abilities Together and Bradford Stronger 
together with policies/risk assessments so they can 
continue to use their allotments.

3. Supporting  Bradford Stronger Together, Youth 
Service, European Drom, Abilities Together, Connecting 
Roma. Supporting Bradford ROMA Strategy 
implementation. Supporting residents access services 
and support through Neighbourhood connect. Working 
with Youth Service supporting provisions in the area 
and future provisions.

P
age 72



Actions
1. Support local groups involved with projects 
to improve the outside environment.
Improve green spaces – bringing derelict 
areas into use.

Work with enforcement/wardens and 
partners to identify land that is un-
adopted/not registered and left to deteriorate 
and  then deal with issues.

2. Support greener environments with a focus on 
Eco Friendly activities/projects/ownership of 
greenspaces working with local groups, schools

3. Work with partners and residents to develop 
projects that increase recycling.
Engage partners to improve ‘grot-spots and work 
with residents to look at sustaining improvements 
.

A Sustainable District
Actions, Outcomes and Progress – Toller

Outcomes
1. More people using green spaces.

2. More opportunities developed for residents 
to engage in local environmental projects.
More residents feeling they have a voice in 
local environmental issues. Environmentally 
appropriate development.

3. Increase in numbers of people 
participating in initiatives.
Improvement in recycling rates/physical 
appearances of neighbourhoods.
Increase in local pride and willingness to 
report fly tipping/waste issues.

Progress
1. Working with jump to develop new green 
spaces  at Whetley grove allotments site/Britania 
Gardens and space at corner of Thorn Street and 
Washington Street. Supporting the development 
of Mitcham community gardens.

2. Working with residents on the  upkeep of 
Kashmir Park. Supported residents to set up 
Friends of West Park group. Worked with 
residents, school pupils to do community clean up 
on unadopted land

3. Wardens and Ward officers have delivered 
school sessions, supported school/community 
litter picks. Supporting Greener Girlington with  
consultations around green spaces and delivering 
environmental sessions in schools. Recycling 
education- identified problem areas and support 
recycling team and wardens. Supported Lady 
Royd School to set up anti littering campaign.

P
age 73



Let’s keep the conversation going

Contact your Area Co-ordinators Office for more 
information about this plan, and how to get involved 
in your community.

Area Co-ordinator: Arshad Mahmood
Phone: 01274 432597
Email: Bradfordwestinfo@bradford.gov.uk

Address: 
Bradford West Area Co-ordinator's Office
Lawcroft House
Lilycroft Road
Manningham
Bradford
BD9 5AD

Everybody in the Bradford West locality can make a difference!
Here are a few ideas….

Connect
•Meet your ward councillors (via email, phone, in person at their 
surgeries) 
•Get to know your Area Co-ordinator’s Office team and their Ward 
Officers and Assistant Ward Officers

Have your say
•Share your ideas through resident and community consultation
•Attend Area Committee, learn about key plans and ask questions
•Vote in local elections

Get involved
•Volunteer in your area (lots of opportunities can be found here)
•Be neighbourly
•Choose sustainable, active travel options
•Community action e.g. Dementia friendly communities, litter picks

Find lots more ideas at www.peoplecanbradforddistrict.org.uk 

P
age 74

https://volunteeringbradford.org/
http://www.peoplecanbradforddistrict.org.uk/


APPENDIX B 
 

CASE STUDIES 
 
BETTER SKILLS, MORE GOOD JOBS AND GROWING ECONOMY 
 

Bringing Skills Training to The People 
 

Thornaby Hub may be a small building but plays a big part in the Clayton Estate community. 
Thanks to partners working together the centre delivers regular activities for local residents. One 
of the key mains of this Hub is to work with key stakeholders and develop opportunities for local 
residents to gain better skills. The Hub is working on the following tangible initiatives that meet the 
needs of local residents: 
 

• Incommunities – as landlord of the Hub which is leased to Clayton Estate Community 
Action Group are looking to support and utilise the hub by linking Incommunities 
Employment Co-ordinators to trial sessions and support residents back to work and provide 
housing advice, which is a priority and raised regularly with local Councillors. 

• Department of Work and Pension’s, Community Outreach Coaches to trial weekly support 
sessions to help individuals and families turn their lives around. 

• Skillshouse are looking to deliver the English for Everyone Programme to help a number of 
learners from Clayton & Fairweather Green who are travelling to other parts of Bradford for 
ESOL provision access the programme locally. 

 
To get local people attracted and engaged to the Hub a number of projects have been undertaken 
for the community these include, THRIVE (part of the Clayton Warm Spaces Network established 
in 2022) for families to meet in a warm space with a brew, chat and activities to keep warm, Grub 
at the Hub, holiday activities with food, and more.  
 

• 400 people attended free holiday activities, such as sports & physical activities, musical 
theatre summer school, trips to the Zoo and more through Education’s Holiday Activity 
Funding 2023 funding. 

 
With a successful Family fun day on 31.8.23 to end the summer activities. 10 volunteers 
including local councillors helped to make the day a success with 372 sausages cooked 
and not one left. 

 
• The Hub has built positive relationships with residents and worked with partners to turn the 

hub into a community venue that meets the needs of the community. What’s on at the hub 
is regularly posted on the new Clayton Estate Community Action Group’s Facebook page. 
 
Getting to know residents is building the trust that is needed, particularly with young people 
to help them recognise the benefits and value of the hub as they now want to look after the 
building and keep it.  
 

• 15 volunteers help at the centre to deliver activities and events, and are actively involved in 
the family fun day, Grub at the Hub every Friday 12.30-1 pm which is growing and now 
supports up to 56 local residents with essential food items for £3 a bag, making everyone 
feel welcome and more. 
 

The appointment of a centre manager has been invaluable and helped to reduce the pressure on 
a number of statutory services, such as the police, fire brigade, children’s/youth services. The hub 
was a regular agenda item for local Councillors and Ward Officers, due to young people gathering 
outside the building and causing ASB issues and the need to turn the centre into a positive place, 
particularly for young people aged 5 to 11 years. 

Page 75



APPENDIX B 
 
DECENT HOMES 
 

 

 
                        Brighter Heaton: Transforming Communities Together 
 
The collaborative efforts of Bradford West Area Office, local Ward Councillors, Incommunities, and 
Home Group resulted in a marked improvement in the living conditions and engagement levels of 
Heaton ward residents. 
 
Statistics from Public Health show there are a series of challenges that affect the overall well-
being of residents of Heaton. Suboptimal living conditions and a lack of community engagement 
were pressing concerns. However, a transformative initiative, aptly named 'Brighter Heaton', 
emerged as a beacon of hope for this community. 
 
Main Achievements: 
The project's success is evident in the numbers. Over 50 households actively participated, 
signifying a significant increase in community engagement levels. Two large skips were provided 
by Home Group, allowing residents to dispose of any waste in their gardens.  
In addition to improving living conditions, 'Brighter Heaton' took a holistic approach to narrowing 
inequalities within the community. The provision of energy-efficient measures, including draft 
excluders and LED lights, proved instrumental in raising the living standards for all residents. 
Waste disposal education was also a crucial aspect, as it empowered residents with knowledge 
about proper waste management procedures. This comprehensive approach contributed to a 
more equitable environment, where every resident could enjoy an improved quality of life. 
A key aspect of the project's success was the emphasis on community engagement. Council 
Neighbourhood Wardens played a vital role in this regard, serving as a bridge between the project 
partners and the residents. They actively engaged with residents, offering guidance on waste 
disposal procedures, and providing information about available resources. This personalized 
approach helped build trust and rapport within the community, ultimately leading to higher levels of 
participation. 
 
'Brighter Heaton' stands as a testament to the power of collaboration and community-driven 
initiatives. Through the concerted efforts of Bradford West Area Office, Incommunities, Home 
Group, and the dedicated residents of Heaton, a transformative change has taken root.  
The Green Doctor program is an excellent initiative that provides free, impartial advice on how to 
save energy in the home and access other services and initiatives available. They can provide 

Page 76



APPENDIX B 
 
different kinds of support, whether that’s advice on paying off debt with energy or water companies 
or spotting other concerns for a referral to other services. 
However, the Bradford Council has prioritized the goal of ensuring everyone has a comfortable 
home that meets their needs and helps them lead fulfilling lives. The council aims to increase the 
supply of homes of the right type, quality, and location to meet the needs and aspirations of the 
diverse and growing population in Bradford. They also aim to retrofit existing housing stock to 
create energy-efficient and adaptable homes. 
 
This case study serves as an inspiring example of how targeted interventions can lead to tangible 
improvements in the lives of community members. As we reflect on the journey of 'Brighter 
Heaton', we are reminded of the potential for positive change. 
 
 
GOOD START, GREAT SCHOOLS 
 

Childrens route to success!! Together We Can 

 

 

 

Local young girls bring their ideas to life to help transform the Hollings Road snicket creating a 
safe and enjoyable space for local children and families to walk to school. Participants also gained 
a real-life experience in community engagement and public realm design and received a certificate 
for their participation in this innovative programme.  

• Street Space Founder Director Phillippa Banister secured a small grant from JU:MP to 
deliver the Safer Snickets project in Manningham.  

• Ward Officer identified 3 potential key locations that would benefit from this project.  
• Ward Officer linked Street Space to Hollings Youth Association where 9 young women 

aged 11-14 expressed an interest in the project and attended workshops at Hollings Youth 
Association. The workshops involved mapping the most common routes they take on a day-
to-day basis. They shared comments about how they feel at different times of the day using 
these routes and created mood boards of inspiring images to shape the snicket.  

• Ward Officer arranged a site visit with Street Space and the PC Women & Girls 
Engagement Officer who collectively agreed on the Hollings Road to White Abbey Road 
snicket due to its close proximity to Dixons Manningham and Green Lane schools.  

• The girls started by developing a manifesto for ‘Safe Snickets’ to measure the success of 
any interventions created and then developed ideas first in 2D by editing current images of 

Page 77



APPENDIX B 
 

the snicket before bringing ideas to life in 3D using a model kit. The local Mosque and 
Schools were consulted on the project and the final design was chosen. Everyone involved 
had lots of fun!  

• The ideas were developed by working with designers and architects before supporting the 
installation of their interventions, such as Painted hopscotch, Painted birds & words: Start - 
Testing - Trying - Flying - Take Off, Laser cut wooden or vinyl birds to hang to/from the 
lamp column and stake/fence, painted in-steps – bringing them to life in the space and 
monitoring their impact. 

Stakeholders and Consultations: 

• Street Space, JU:MP: Secured funding for the project. 
• Ward Officer, PC for Women & Girls Engagement Officer, local Councillors: Instrumental in 

supporting the project, working with Street Space and local girls to help finalise the location 
and make links with young women through Hollings Youth Association. 

• Cleansing Services, Signage Team: Supporting the girls to litter pick the snicket & install a 
post for the birds in flight. 

The purpose of the safer snickets project is to work collaboratively to transform an unloved snicket 
or small public space.  

 
 
BETTER HEALTH, BETTER LIVES 
  
 

BRINGING GOOD HEALTH TO YOU NEIGHBOURHOOD HEALTH SCREENING 

 
 

The Farnham Community Association has been actively working with a local community partnership 
group to organize an event aimed at the early prevention of high blood pressure and diabetes among 
adults aged 30-60. The event focused on catching early signs of these factors, which would help 
the NHS understand early signs in that age bracket. The centre utilized its own volunteers to assist 
with the welcoming and signing process, reducing waiting times, and alleviating pressure on doctors. 
With a long history of running events of this nature, the Farnham Community Association is actively 
working for the benefit of residents in the area. 

To address health inequalities within Bradford West, a system-wide approach is being undertaken 
to support service users, Primary Care Networks (PCNs), and communities in addressing their 
mental health and physical needs using a prevention approach. City Ward have hosted health 

Page 78



APPENDIX B 
 
checks focusing on blood pressure, diabetes, and healthy living. An event in September 2023 at the 
Milta Islamic Mosque on Ivanhoe Road, which attracted over 80 participants in just 3 hours. This 
was supported by the local area office we were the link between PCN and Farnham Community 
Association with putting the two together so the event could take place. 

These health checks are part of efforts to promote better health and well-being within the community. 
By raising awareness about common health conditions such as high blood pressure and diabetes, 
individuals can take proactive steps to manage their health and make informed lifestyle choices. 
Regular health checks can help identify potential health risks early on and enable timely 
interventions. 

It’s great to see initiatives like these taking place in city ward to improve the overall health and well-
being of the community! 

 
SAFE, STRONG AND ACTIVE COMMUNITIES 
 

KEEPIING IT GREEN AND KEEPING YOU SAFE 

 
 

This area designated as village green status has been blighted with the constant noise and anti-
social behaviour of off-road vehicles accessing Allerton Green for years. The issue has been two-
fold with local residents bringing their off-road bikes/quads and also people from out of the area 
driving their vans onto Allerton Green and offloading bikes/quads and bringing their whole families. 
The offroad bikes have also been causing issues on the roads surrounding the access points. 
Police and Bradford Council officers have previously undertaken several measures to try and 
resolve the issues but have not been able to reduce the antisocial behaviour. 
 
Bradford West Area Co-ordinator’s office have led on the work with Local ward councillors, NPT 
and officers from Bradford Councils Countryside and Rights of Way and Safer Communities to 
address the anti-social use off-road vehicle accessing into Allerton Village Green and Chellow 
Dene area, but still allowing access for residents. 
The main priority of the intervention was to secure the access points. There are 9 access points, 
we have identified 5 access points which need measures put in place to restrict access to off road 
vehicles.  
 
Phase 1 - new gate and extra bollards have been installed at the entrance off Meadowbank 
Avenue, still allowing access for residents. The barriers at Meadowbank Avenue are the first to be 
installed with the co-operation and support of the landowners and residents. New PSPO zone 
signs have been put in place on lampposts and residents have also been asked to support by 
continuing to report incidents to the police.    

Page 79



APPENDIX B 
 
Phase 2 - Field gates and kissing gates to be erected at the access points off North parade and 
Ivy Lane.  

 Phase 3 - working with Highways we are looking at putting measures in at 2 other access points. 

Since the gate has gone up on Meadowbank Avenue the police have said there has been a 
marked reduction in the calls to service.  Also, residents have welcomed the scheme and said 
there has been less issues. 
 
Police patrols have been stepped up in the area and colleagues from Operation Steerside are 
regularly carrying out operations in the area. 

This area is fostering better sense of safety and trust among its residents and services this will 
lead to stronger and more resilient communities. Since the development of this project:  
•         Restricted access for off road vehicles 
• Less off-road vehicle nuisance  
• Reduced calls to service for police/council 
 
 
A SUSTAINABLE DISTRICT 
 
 

Clean Air, Safe Streets = Healthier and Happier YOU 

 
 

Girlington Primary school was part of School Streets which was a pilot scheme introduced at 
nine Bradford schools in 2021. It involved schools that were not on major roads and saw the road 
around the school gates closed to cars at drop off and pick up times. It was in a bid to encourage 
more families to walk to school and to reduce dangerous congestion around the school gates and 
subsequently to reduce air pollution whilst also improving health and wellbeing. Unfortunately, due 
a number of factors the scheme was temporarily suspended. 

Bradford West Area Office led on revitalising this work in Girlington, working together with partners 
including Council highways, schools and local volunteers from Greener Girlington.  
The Scheme is now operating at two schools in the heart of Girlington, Girlington Primary School 
and St Philips CE Primary Academy with the aim to: Reduce congestion around the school; 
Prevent dangerous driving, parking and turning outside school where there are lots of children and 
families; Reduce air pollution (caused by engines running) and noise pollution; Provide a safer, 
calmer, happier, healthier space for our children; Encourage walking, cycling, wheeling and 
scooting to school. 
 

Page 80

https://www.thetelegraphandargus.co.uk/sport/sportbcfc/


APPENDIX B 
 
Local community group Greener Girlington have worked with parents and the wider community to 
recruit volunteers and manage the street closures with the support of the West NPT and Bradford 
West Area Office.  Council highways officer provided the initial training for school staff and since 
then Bradford West Area Office has done training sessions with the volunteers. Over 20 Parents 
and residents have got involved and are volunteering as school streets stewards. 
This project has seen a considerable reduction in the number of pupils being driven to school. 
More pupils are being let walk to school by themselves. It has led to an overall calmer start and 
end to the school day. 
 
The volunteers are getting more engaged with school life and other initiatives in the community. 
Attending JUMP sessions at the school around health and nutrition and fitness sessions at Masjid 
Umar on Kensington Street. Positive feedback from the schools, parents, pupils and residents. 
 

• Children are calmer school start, more pupils walking 
• Its tension free I don’t have to worry about my little ones leaving me side. 
• I don’t have to worry about cars driving onto the pavement without looking out for small 

children. 
• Theres more space for children to move around, jump and run. 
• There have been so many times before this road closure when cars drove so fast and 

recklessly just to get as near to the school entrance as possible. 

These schools now are looking to be part of the Bradford Clean Air Schools Programme (CASP). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Report of the Strategic Director, Place to the meeting of 
Bradford West Area Committee to be held on 30 
November 2023 

H 
 
 
Subject:   
 
YOUTH SERVICE UPDATE – BRADFORD WEST 
 
Summary statement: 
 
This report gives an update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford West Area in 

the past 12 months and outlines the direction of travel for the next 12 months. 

 
 

  
David Shepard 
Strategic Director 
Place 

Portfolio:  Cllr Abdul Jabar 
 
Neighbourhoods and Customer Services  
 

Report Contact: Arshad Mahmood   
Phone: (01274 432597) 
E-mail: ash.m@bradford.gov.uk  

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Children’s Services 
 

Page 83

Agenda Item 7/

mailto:ash.m@bradford.gov.uk


 

1 
 

1. SUMMARY 
1.1 This report gives an update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the   

Bradford West Area in 2022-23 
1.2 The report outlines the following information: 

• An overview of Youth Service provision in Bradford West 
• An update on how the Youth Service continues to respond to increased demand 

and complexity of need.  
• An update on youth provision ward by ward and key developments. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
2.1 The Bradford Council Youth Service is part of the wider Bradford District Youth 

Offer that aims to ensure the provision of a range of activities and services that take 
place in safe spaces, where young people can develop a sense of belonging, 
socialise with their peers and develop relationships with adults they can trust. It 
recognises that with the right supportive relationships, strong ambitions and good 
opportunities all young people can realise their potential and be positive and active 
members of society. 

2.2 The Youth Service vision statement is to work with partners to ensure that young 
people grow up healthy, happy, informed and aspiring; proud of who they are, 
where they come from and actively involved in their community.  

2..2.1  Youth Service priorities are aligned to the five key elements of the Bradford District 
Youth Offer – as detailed in the table below: 
Youth Offer Element 1 – Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) 
Increase the numbers of young people accessing IAG through digital media. 
Youth Offer Element 2 – Voice and influence 
Increase the numbers of young people participating in Youth Voice opportunities at all 
levels. 
Youth Offer Element 3 – Open access/detached  
Deliver a diverse youth offer through working in partnership with the Voluntary & 
Community Sector (VCS) and local communities. 
Youth Offer Element 4 - Targeted provision  
Increase the number of specific interventions to address the needs of vulnerable young 
people. 
Youth Offer Element 5 - Active citizens and young people’s contribution to community life 
Increase the number of young people having a positive impact on their community. 

 
2.4 The Youth Service is managed within a localities model as part of Neighbourhood 

and Customer Services. From 1st April 2023 the Breaking the Cycle Youth Work 
Team became part of Bradford Children and Families Trust.  

 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
3.1     Youth Provision 
 

Over the last 12 months youth provision across all six wards has continued to 
respond to the needs of young people. Ward teams have worked with a wide range 
of community partners to ensure that young people have a network of support that 

Page 84



 

2 
 

enables them to engage in positive relationships. This work has taken place 
through a range of delivery methods including detached, outreach and centre based 
sessions. This approach has enabled Youth Workers to consistently respond to 
issues faced by young people whilst continuing to promote key public health 
messages by offering information, advice and guidance. 
 
In October and November 2022, significant Youth Service resources were used to 
prevent and challenge the seasonal peak in Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) 
associated with Halloween, Mischief Night, and Bonfire Night. Youth Workers 
engaged young people in a ‘Consequences’ campaign that highlighted the impact 
of ASB and misuse of fireworks. In October 2023 Bradford West Youth Service 
provided a 7-day bonfire detached response team. In addition, they provided a 
diversionary residential, targeting young people who had previously been involved 
with Bonfire related ASB. We saw a direct positive impact of the 7-day response 
detached work and the diversionary residential. Throughout the week Bradford 
West youth service engaged with 966 young people. 
Information regarding the Bradford West bonfire response detached work can 
be found in both Appendix C 
 
Between December 2022 and May 2023 Youth Workers focused on balancing the 
needs of young people through open access youth provision and small group work 
sessions. This approach enables Youth Workers to offer a menu of support to 
young people whilst increasing membership and participation.  
 
Over the summer months Youth Workers offered activities in local parks that 
encouraged young people to respect green spaces and the members of the 
community. In addition, Youth Workers targeted young people making the transition 
between primary and secondary school and offered Moving Up sessions that 
helped build resilience.  

 
   

3.2  Responding to demand and complexity of need 
 

Over the last 12 months Youth Workers have responded to a significant increase in 
referrals from partner organisations to help address the following issues: 

 
Domestic Abuse – young people report that they have experienced increased 
tension and domestic abuse within their family units. 
   
Educational Anxiety – young people report that they are anxious and fearful of the 
learning that they have lost and what this means for their future.  
 
Isolation – young people report that they have felt lonely and isolated, and a 
significant amount of family time is spent in different rooms on individual screens 
and devises.  
 
Self-Harm – young people report that they have used self-harm as a means to 
cope with some of the issues that they have experienced. 

 
The Youth Service has remained focused on meeting demand and delivered the 

Page 85



 

3 
 

following support through local youth provision: 
 
Youth Clubs – each ward has a youth club that enables young people to come 
together and socialise through a series of activities and programmes that help 
develop personal and social skills whilst encouraging thought and action on local 
area issues. Youth clubs are an essential component in developing independence 
and reducing dependency on specialist services.  
 
Small Groups – the Youth Service has developed a series of peer support groups 
that enable young people to come together and support each other for issues that 
are important to them. Many of these sessions have a central activity that helps 
young people to engage and build trust. 

 
One to One Support – young people are supported by a local Youth Worker who 
will offer a home visit and a series of interventions designed to build trust. Through 
these interventions youth workers will set goals and targets for young people and 
help them assess local support networks. This work helps address complex issues 
such as; Domestic Abuse, Child Sexual Exploitation and Family Breakdown. 
  

Volunteering – as young people become older we encourage them to take on 
board more responsibility in the local community. Youth Workers support young 
people to participate in community action projects, helping others and developing 
employability skills through volunteering.  

 
 
3.3     Other work targeted at young people with specific needs including vulnerable    
          and at risk. 
 

The Youth Service continues to provide direct support to young people at risk of 
exploitation. Through building trust with their Youth Worker, young people have 
reported feeling less isolated, more connected with their community and safer. 
Bradford West currently runs several targeted provisions all of which offer young 
people a safe space to engage in positive activities. This work helps raise 
awareness of issues such as serious organised crime, grooming and county lines.  

3.4     Youth Work support as part of Youth in Mind 
  

The Youth Service has been commissioned to deliver early interventions to young 
people across the district. This is a collaborative partnership with Bradford District 
Care Trust and Youth in Mind (YiM) which offers help to young people for their 
mental health and well-being and seeks to reduce demand on specialist services. 
 
Over the last year, Bradford West has received over 300 referrals from the Child 
and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), School Nurses & other 
professionals. These referrals are allocated to Youth Workers who act as Buddies 
to young people, their role is to befriend them, support them using the Signs of 
Safety approach and navigate local support networks. 
 
In addition, Youth Workers work closely with all secondary schools in Bradford West 
and help identify students who need support for their mental health and well-being. 
Youth Workers support these additional caseloads in schools, delivering 1:1 work 

Page 86



 

4 
 

on a weekly basis developing young people’s confidence, self-belief, and resilience. 
Youth Workers also support young people in hospital offering interventions that 
promote self-care and connect them to local services that offer crisis support.  
 

3.5     A partnership approach  
 

The Youth Service is supported by a wide range of partners in each community. 
Youth Workers work with local partners to understand the needs of the community 
and help build capacity to deliver bespoke projects. These projects help build 
stronger relationships with the local community and increase participation, action 
and ownership on local area issues.  
Within each ward Youth Workers work alongside Ward Officers to map local area 
issues and develop responses. A good example of how this can be seen in the 
weekly Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) Reports that are shared by the Police with the 
Area Office. These reports allow Youth Workers to identify where ASB is impacting 
on the community. Youth Workers visit the locations, engage the community and 
feedback to ward officers who track and monitor the impact of the interventions.  
Mapping and understanding the root causes of local issues provides an opportunity 
to plan and develop longer term responses that local partners are supported to lead 
on. This enables funding to be secured and additional resources to be invested.  

3.6     Future Workforce 
 

In September 2022 Bradford West welcomed 2 new Youth Work Trainees to the 
team. The trainees were placed with the team with the view to supporting the 
development of Youth Voice initiatives that ensure young people have a greater 
role in shaping service delivery. The trainees also helped identify gaps in provision 
and develop new projects that respond to the needs of young people. 

  
 From September 2023, the team will support a Youth Worker Apprentice to 
complete a degree in Youth Work. The apprentice will hold several key 
responsibilities within the team supporting the development of Youth Voice 
initiatives that ensure young people have a greater role in shaping service delivery. 
They will also help identify gaps in provision and develop new projects that respond 
to the needs of young people. 

 
3.7     West Wide Provisions 
 
          Bradford West currently leads on the delivery of 3 area wide sessions. These 

sessions are for young people to attend from across Bradford West. The area wide 
sessions are themed to suit young people’s needs, interests and increase our 
Youth Offer. Information regarding the West Wide provisions can be found in both 
Appendix A and Appendix B. 

 
3.8       District wide youth work 
         

The team work closely with Bradford Children and Families Trust. From April 2023 

Page 87



 

5 
 

we have retained a strong commitment to ensuring seamless services for young 
people in the area.  
  
The work of the District Youth Service includes Breaking the Cycle project who are 
employed under the BDC Trust, they specialise in providing intensive support to 
young people who are at risk or who are being criminally exploited. This work 
includes those identified as being linked to Organised Crime Groups, Urban Street 
Gangs and those who have higher than yellow ASB sanctions. The longer-term 
prevention and building relationships are undertaken by Bradford Youth service. 

 
District Youth Services have over the last 12 months developed the Youth Work 
Academy – this has seen 11 youth rights trainees working with the service on the 
agenda of youth voice and children’s rights. They have almost completed their 
traineeships and a high number of them have acquired Level 2 and 3 in youth work 
and have gone on / have secured future employment for when the traineeships end 
in September. This team has led the serious violence consultation for the district to 
ensure the voices of young people are strong as stakeholders in the new serious 
violence duty which is imposed on the authority and several other strategic 
partners.  

 
District Youth Services continue to provide training for a number of other agencies, 
coordinated through the Bradford Safeguarding Partnership - the team have 
delivered training around County Lines and weapons to help other practitioners 
become more aware of the early indicators of serious violence.  

 
4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
4.1     The Youth Service base budget remains unchanged for 2023/24. The service has 

filled vacancies and recruited additional staff to fulfil commissioned service delivery 
including: Youth in Mind, BACS and Positive Futures. Some of this commissioned 
work is geographically specific which may mean that we see demand being met with 
additional Youth Work resources. 

    
 5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
  
 The implementation of the planned budget for the Youth Service is subject to the 

internal risk management plan of the Council and progress is reported to the Place 
Departmental Management Team. 

 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 

No issues. 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
            

The Youth Service as part of the Council’s commitment to the District has a 
responsibility to ensure that the service is accessible to all young people and that 

Page 88



 

6 
 

participation in the service reflects this approach. 
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 

The Youth Service delivery enables local initiatives to be supported, encouraging 
groups and individuals to undertake activities that improve the social, economic and 
environmental wellbeing of their communities. 

 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 

Greenhouse gas emissions and wider environmental impacts was a consideration of 
the Buildings Review.  

 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

Young people from across Bradford West engaging in weekly sessions and 
specialist provisions are directly and indirectly involved with supporting and 
developing community safety within their local area. Voice and influence is central 
to youth work delivery ensuring young people’s ideas, suggestions and thoughts 
are heard. 
 
The strengthened approach to the devolution of the Youth Service as will allow for:  
 
• an increased sense of local democracy for both young people and communities 
• young people to be more active in democratic, decision-making processes 

alongside their political representatives.  
• the voice and influence of young people to remain central, meaningful and 

paramount in identifying and addressing needs and issues in their 
communities.  

• the requirements of the localism/devolution agenda to be met effectively and 
efficiently. 

 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 

There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from the recommendations 
below. 

 
7.6 TRADE UNION 

All budget proposals are subject to consultation with the Trade Unions. 
 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 

The information in this report is related to all wards in the constituency and 
appendix B outlines the Youth Service projects and activities delivered across 
West.  

8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
None.  
 
 
 

Page 89



 

7 
 

9. OPTIONS 
9.1     That Bradford West Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this 

report. 
 
9.2 That Bradford West Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this 

report, with amendments. 
 
9.3 That Bradford West Area Committee decides not to accept the recommendations 

outlined in this report. 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That the work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford West Area as detailed 

in this report be welcomed. 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
11.1 Appendix A: Bradford West Youth Service Baseline Youth Provision 

  
11.2   Appendix B: Bradford West – Youth Service Ward Updates  

 
11.3 Appendix C – Bradford West Youth Service Bonfire detached response work 
 
12.      BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
12.1 Youth Service – Area Committee Report 2022 
  

Page 90



 

8 
 

 
 
Appendix A 

 
 

Bradford West Youth Service 
Baseline Youth Provision – 2023 

 
MANNINGHAM WARD 
For more information contact Kim Parkinson – 07533296879 or kim.parkinson@bradford.gov.uk  
Day/Time Activity Location Frequency 
Monday 
18.00 – 21.00 

Detached and outreach  Manningham Ward  Weekly  

Tuesday 18.00 – 
21.00  

Open Access  Sharing Voices  Weekly  

Wednesday  
17.30 – 20.30 

Open Access MYC Weekly 

 
CITY WARD 
For more information contact  Gemma Booth 07582103570 or email gemma.booth@bradford.gov.uk   
Day/Time Activity Location Frequency 
Monday / 
Tuesday 
17.00 – 20.00 

Grange Interlink sports boys Grange Interlink Weekly  

Wednesday  
17.00 –20.00 

Horton Park Hub  Horton Park  
 

Weekly 

Friday  
17.30 – 20.30 

Open Access  Khidmat Centre  Weekly  

 
 
 
 
 

CLAYTON & FAIRWEATHER GREEN WARD 
For more information contact Ursula Milling on 07890970717 or email  ursula.milling@bradford.gov.uk  
Day/Time Activity Location Frequency 
Monday  
17.00 – 20.00 

Open Access Clayton Village Hall Weekly 

Tuesday  
18.00 – 21.00 

Open Access  Lower Grange Community 
Centre  

Weekly 

Thursday  
17.00 – 20.00 

Open Access Lower Grange Community 
Centre  

Weekly 

 
 
 
 

Page 91

mailto:kim.parkinson@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.booth@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:ursula.milling@bradford.gov.uk


 

9 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

SCHOOLS WORK  
For more information contact Chy Burnett – 07342657558 or email chy.burnett@bradford.gov.uk  
Day/Time Activity Location Frequency Target group 
Monday 
8.30am-15.30pm 

1:1 Support Beckfoot 
Thornton 

Weekly Health and Well Being 

Monday 9.00am – 
16:00pm 

1:1 Support  Dixons McMillan Weekly  Health and Well Being 

Monday  
9.00am–15.00pm 

1:1 Support Dixons Trinity Weekly Health and Well Being 

Tuesday 
10.00am–13.00pm 

1:1 Support  1 in a Million 
Free School 

Weekly Health and Well Being 

Tuesday 
10.00am–13.30pm 

1:1 Support  St Bedes & St 
Josephs  

Weekly Health and Well Being 

Tuesday  
8.00am – 15.30pm  

1:1 Support  Beckfoot 
Thornton  

Weekly  Health and Well Being 

Tuesday 
10:00am – 
13:00pm 

1:1 Support Bradford Girls 
Grammar 

Weekly Health and Well Being 

Tuesday 
9.00am -12.30 

1:1 Support Beckfoot Upper 
Heaton 

Weekly Health and Well Being 

THORNTON & ALLERTON WARD 
For more information contact  Jason Brown 07890970779 or email Jason.brown@bradford.gov.uk  
Day/Time Activity Location Frequency 
Tuesday 
18.00 – 21.00 

Open Access St James Church, Thornton Weekly 

Wednesday 
17.00 – 20.00 

Open Access Café West, Allerton Weekly 

Friday 
17.00 -20.00 

Sports Session Thornton recreation centre Weekly 

TOLLER WARD 
For more information contact Mohammed Luqman 07890970716 or email 
mohammed.luqman@bradford.gov.uk  
Day/Time Activity Location Frequency 
Monday 17.00- 
20.00 

Open Access  Toller Youth Café  Weekly  

Tuesday 
18.00 – 21.00 

Girls Group Girlington Weekly 

Wednesday 
18.00 – 21.00 

Open Access Toller Youth Cafe Weekly 

Heaton Ward  
For more information contact Kadie Webster 07890970780 or email Kadie.webster@bradford.gov.uk  
Day/Time Activity Location Frequency 
Monday 18.00 – 
21.00  

Open Access  Frizinghall Community Centre  Weekly  

Thursday 
18.00 – 21.00 

Detached  Howarth Road and Heaton  Weekly 

Friday  
18.00 – 21.00 

Open Access Heaton Village Hall  Weekly 

Page 92

mailto:chy.burnett@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Jason.brown@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:mohammed.luqman@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Kadie.webster@bradford.gov.uk


 

10 
 

Tuesday 
9.00am – 15.00pm 

1:1 Support Dixons 
Cottingley 

Weekly Health and Well Being 

Tuesday 
9:00am – 16:00pm 

1:1 Support Dixons 
McMillian 

Weekly Health and Well Being 

Wednesday 
10:00am – 
13:00pm 

1:1 Support Eden Boys 
Academy 

Weekly Health and Well Being 

Wednesday 
9.00am–16.00pm  

1:1 Support  Dixons McMillan  Weekly Health and Well Being 

Wednesday 
8.30am-15.30pm 

1:1 Support Beckfoot 
Thornton 

Weekly Health and Well Being 

Thursday 
9.00am -12.00pm  

1:1 Support  Belle Vue Girls  Weekly Health and Well Being 

Thursday 
9:00am – 16:00pm 

1:1 Support Dixons 
McMillian 

Weekly Health and Well Being 

Thursday 
8.00 – 15.30pm  

1:1 Support  Beckfoot 
Thornton  

Weekly  Health and Well Being 

Thursday 
10.00am–13.30pm 

1:1 Support  St Bedes & St 
Josephs  

Weekly Health and Well Being 

Friday 
8.30am-15.30pm 

1:1 Support Beckfoot 
Thornton 

Weekly Health and Well Being 

 
The above table provides an overview of the work that is delivered in secondary schools in 
Bradford West. Each youth worker will hold an average case load of 12 young people who they 
provide one to one support to over a half-term. This enables youth workers to work with many 
young people over the course of a school year. The impact of these early interventions helps 
reduce exclusions and maintain attendance whilst also reducing the demand on specialist 
services. The support received is unique to each individual but often focuses on emotional 
wellbeing, anxiety and low self-esteem.  
 
The impact of this ‘school-based support’ has been the growth of ‘community based’ peer support 
groups across the constituency. These groups offer young people the opportunity to share the 
‘self-care skills’ that they have learnt with others. We commonly refer to these groups as Youth in 
Mind – Peer Support groups.  

 
 

 
Bradford West Wide  
Day/Time Activity Location Frequency 
Monday  
16.00 – 18.00  

SOUND group  Thornton Community Centre Weekly  

Monday  
17.00 – 20.00 

ASD Youth Shine Culture Fusion Weekly 

Thursday 
18.00 – 21.00 

Inclusion - Star Club Culture Fusion Weekly 

 
The Bradford West Wide provisions have been developed across the area in response to the 
needs and issues raised by young people. These provisions include small group sessions, 
targeted groups supporting young people around LGBTQ+, wellbeing and resilience support 
sessions, provisions to support young people with additional needs and youth voice focussed 
sessions.  
 
 

Page 93



 

11 
 

 
 
 

Appendix B 
 

Bradford West – Youth Service Ward Updates: 
 
 
Manningham Ward  
 
Throughout Manningham, we have built some strong networks with different partners and after 
having a successful summer where our Manningham young people had opportunities to attend lots 
of summer provision alongside different trips to insane air, the beach go-karting, and a restaurant 
we are now back in our regular sessions where we have been planning our next 12 weeks up to 
the winter holidays.  
 
From conversations with our partners within Manningham and the voices of young people 
regarding feeling safe around bonfire week, we conducted outreach work, engaging in discussions 
and interventions with young people around fireworks, “staying safe” and consequences 
associated with inappropriate use of fireworks. This has been a positive start to bonfire week with 
many young people engaging within this work.  
 
Using local data and using consultations with our Manningham young people around obesity. We 
have a new and exciting project, which will be start in November at the sharing voices youth group. 
Youth workers will present a direct focus around wellbeing and healthy eating. Utilising our local 
partners, we are liaising with gyms and football sessions for young people to not only receive the 
knowledge but also the active participation of physical activity.  
 
During our BYO sessions, our young people are approaching university age and with many young 
people lacking skills of independent living, we have been conducting workshops in response to this 
to help and advice young people around keeping safe in the dark, knife crime awareness, 
managing money, cooking and life skills. This has been successful with young people as we have 
a group who have all started university and come back to BYO to share how they are finding their 
courses and what they are enjoying. 
 
Youth Workers continue to undertake regular detached sessions, garden gate visits and 1:1’s 
engaging with the young people in their community responding to issues shared and highlighted by 
our partners with a focus on addressing ASB. 
 
Heaton Ward 
 
Sessions at Frizinghall community centre are open access each week. The introduction of 
additional workshops for our young people to informally educate on a wide range of topics, with 
ASB being at the forefront.  
 
Heaton village hall open access sessions are developing each week. There is a consistent cohort 
of young people who attend. 1-1 work, as well as peer workshops has a strong presence in this 
group and the young people have been producing some fantastic outcomes. Youth workers have 
also directly liaised with the local PCSO’s, who regularly attend the Friday provision. Youth 
Workers continue to undertake detached work in the area, and we are looking to developing the 
session further. 
 
St Martins Church has recently opened as an open access youth centre within the church. This is 

Page 94



 

12 
 

an outdoor space for the young people, again it is encouraging the young people to attend as the 
youth workers have conducted excellent outreach summer sports sessions throughout the 6-week 
holidays. Great relationships have been established through this work. Youth workers frequently 
liaise with Bell Vue girls & Beckfoot Upper Heaton secondary school, providing 1:1 low level 
mental health support within both schools on a weekly basis.  
 
Youth Workers continue to undertake regular detached sessions, garden gate visits and 1:1’s 
engaging with the young people in their community responding to issues shared and highlighted by 
our partners with a focus on addressing ASB. 
 
Partnership working is increasingly developing throughout Heaton ward, youth workers are 
currently organising a ward wide event, including numerous agencies to attend. 
 
 
 
City Ward 
 
In a partnership with the community organisation Grange Interlink we deliver two youth provisions. 
Our Connect Girls group is a targeted provision for young females within the community. The 
group is currently undertaking work on having their voice heard through taking part in lyric writing 
and music production around issues which affect them. They are also building resilience tools 
through self-care and meditations sessions to learn the best techniques to look after their 
emotional health and creating Black History Month artwork. Our open access group at Grange 
Interlink are currently engaging in session expanding their understanding around current topics 
such as Black History month, Knife crime workshop, Mental health and how to be active citizens. 
 
Targeted detached work is currently being undertaken around City Ward including the city centre. 
The staff team have also supported response work such as additional three days detached to 
provide de-escalation support after antisocial behaviour from young people fighting in the City Park 
area caused public disorder and been on had to support young people during the Palestine 
demonstration. The detached team are also currently working on creating and developing issue-
based session with a view to provide these to various community centres in the Ward to support 
young people who are not currently benefiting from youth work intervention in the area.  
 
The city ward staff team will also be undertraining a week of Bonfire response work with the West 
Team where we shall provide young people with consequence information around the dangers of 
misusing fireworks, support de-escalation of situations and keep our young people safe. young 
people from the city ward will also be offered places on the diversionary residential that will take 
place bonfire weekend, with young people having opportunity to participate in adventure activities 
over three days.  
  
Youth People in the City Ward are also provided with Youth in Mind one to one support for 
emotional health either through a community referral or a school referral were needs for additional 
assistance. 
 
 
Toller Ward 
 
Toller ward operates 3 sessions per week, open access at Girlington community centre, girls only 
group at Farcliffe Community Hub and open access at Toller Youth Café. These sessions belong 
to different ethnicities attending each week. Most recently there has been a direct focus across the 
ward highlighting current issues such as ASB, Education & Employment, Drugs & Alcohol. 
Through the use of guest speakers, workshops, and various activities. 

Page 95



 

13 
 

 
The sessions also enable young people to engage with other young people from different 
communities and backgrounds. Youth workers have hosted cohesion provisions, trips & 
residentials to ensure our young people are improving social cohesion, development 
understanding of others from different backgrounds and improving the social tensions between 
different wards within the district. 
 
Youth workers are frequently assessing creative avenues to enable young people to engage and 
use the services by facilitating and adapting to new ideas to make the sessions more suitable, 
interesting, and convenient for young people.  
Youth workers have connected with J.U.M.P to launch a girls only session at Girlington Community 
centre. 
 
Youth Workers continue to undertake regular detached sessions, garden gate visits and 1:1’s 
engaging with the young people in their community responding to issues shared and highlighted by 
our partners with a focus on addressing ASB. 
 
Furthermore, we aim to establish strong connections with local schools and other organisations to 
engage with more young people and understand the needs of young people. In addition, we are 
also working on an event to engage with the local community and informally educate families and 
young people on the services available to them within their localities. 
 
Clayton & Fairweather Green Ward 
 
Clayton Village Hall open access session has regular high attendance, the young people engage 
positively, the sessions are an opportunity for the young people to have a safe space where they 
can socialise with their peers, take part in fun engaging activities such as sports and games. The 
sessions are also an opportunity to engage the Young People on informal topics around a wide 
range of issues impacting the lives of the young people. Most recently discussions have taken place 
around knife crime and firework safety. Youth workers within the sessions are utilising a variety of 
methods to aid and support young people’s engagement which has been working well. 
 
Youth Workers continue to undertake regular detached sessions, garden gate visits and 1:1’s 
engaging with the young people in their community responding to issues shared and highlighted by 
our partners with a focus on addressing ASB.  
  
Lower Grange Community Centre open access session is well attended with regular YP accessing 
the provision. As with Clayton the session at Lower Grange is also an opportunity to engage the 
Young People on informal topics around a wide range of issues impacting the lives of the young 
people. The centre is well equipped and the YP have access to a sports hall where they can partake 
in a variety of active activities such as a range of multi-sports. There is also access to the kitchen 
and young people enjoy preparing and making some snacks and healthy foods. 
 
The Bradford Youth Service have worked closely with HAF (Holiday Activities and Food programme) 
The HAF summer programme was a massive success across the board and over the summer 2023 
250 young people engaged with the youth service which is fantastic! Lots of different trips and 
activities were put on for all YP to enjoy. We are currently in the process of organising our Christmas 
HAF programme. 
 
 Open access provisions at Lower Grange have also seen youth workers work alongside young 

Page 96



 

14 
 

people who are NEET and are at risk or ASB and CCE and has formed strong partnership work with 
JUMP and others. 
  
Lower Grange Young Leaders is a closed group, and the numbers are smaller than those of the 
open access. This group is aimed at young people who have been identified as having any Social 
Emotional Mental Health difficulties and is a great opportunity to allow them to be able to share their 
thoughts/ feeling in a safe environment and a good opportunity to meet with peers who are 
experiencing the same or similar issues.  
 
 
Thornton & Allerton Ward 
 
Through the recent partnership to develop a youth provision at St. James’ Church Thorton, we are 
starting a new ‘After school provision’ that is now available, operating every Thursday between the 
times of 3:30pm – 5:30pm. Creating a safer environment for young people to attend, and engage 
with Youth workers after school.  
Through the use of the café in the church, we have brilliant engagement from young people; 
providing healthy snacks, informal education and multi sporting activities. 
 
 
Café West in Allerton operates Wednesday evening. We have worked closely with Café west to 
create a partnership that works well in the community and has a varied service that is used by the 
whole community.  
Once again this session is well attended with around 50 – 60 young people attending weekly.  
 
Thornton football sessions are running and is a great success, numbers continue to grow, and the 
session is delivered in partnership with Thornton school and Thornton Recreation Centre where we 
use sport as a tool to engage young people in issue-based work. Over the past month we have been 
able to integrate girls into the dominantly boy’s session. After a conversation with a few of the girls I 
decided to introduce ‘Netball’ nets into the space 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 97



 

15 
 

 
 
Appendix C  
 
Bradford West Youth Service Bonfire detached response work please see attached tables. 

Page 98



 

16 
 

Day  Communication 
Lead / call  

Based 
within a 
hub 

Bonfire Outreach teams                                      
     5- 8 /5:30 – 8:30/ 6 - 9 

Lead Contact 
numbers 

Monday 
30th  
October 

 
Chy Burnett  
07342657558 

 Manningham/City: Azeem, Amaan, 
Awais  - 5:00pm – 8:00pm 
 
Clayton fair-weather green/ 
Allerton & Thornton:   
Sarah Khuram, Pauline                                          
5:30pm – 8:30pm  
 
 
Toller/Heaton:  Kadie, Karen, Haziq 
& Miroslav 6:00pm -9:00pm  
 
Youth shine 5-8pm Anum and Sarah 
J 

  
 
Azeem 
07974623810 
 
Sarah 
07976273573 
 
Kadie 
07890970780 
 

Tuesday 31st 
October   

 
Gemma Booth  
07582103570 

 City/Manningham; 
Kim, Anum, Maureen, Khuram             
6:00pm – 9:00pm 
   
Clayton fair-weather green Allerton 
& Thornton: 
Kadie, Sarah, Jonathan                                
5.30pm- 8.30pm              
 
Toller: /Heaton; 
 Lucky, Margaret, Mij, Sumaiyah          
5.00pm –8:00pm 
 
 
                     Possibly sessions are 
until 10pm, dependent on identified 
need. 
 

   
 
 
Kim 
07533296879 
 
Kadie 
07890970780 
 
Lucky 
07890970716 
 

Wednesday 

1st 
November  

Gemma Booth  
07582103570 
 
 

 City/Manningham;  
•Azeen  , Hannah, Sanna, Haziq              
5:00 pm – 8:00pm 
 
 
Clayton fair-weather green Allerton 
& Thornton 
: Kim, Paris, Awais, Jonathan                    
6:00pm –9:00pm 
 
Toller/ Heaton:  Luky, Karen, 
Miroslav, Sumaiyah  
                                                                          
5:30pm –8:30pm 
 

  
 
Azeem 
07974623810 
 
Kim 
07533296879 
 
Lucky 
07890970716 
 
 

Thursday 
2nd 
November  

Chy Burnett  
07342657558 

 Manningham/City: Khuram, Hannah 
& Sumaiya 
                                                                       
5:30pm – 8:30pm 

Khuram 
07971179676 
Azeem 
07974623810 

Page 99



 

17 
 

            
 
Clayton fair-weather green, Allerton 
& Thornton 
Azeem, Akenyia, Pauline, 6:00pm – 
9.00pm 
 
 
Toller/ Heaton; Kadie, Margret, 
Miroslav 
  – 5:00pm – 8:00pm 
 
Star 5-8pm Sarah J, Karen, Imy & 
Daniellle   
 
 

 
Kadie 
07890970780 
 
 
 
 
 

Friday 3rd   
November  

Peter Lawrence  
07866127283 
 

  City /: Manningham; Kim, Azeem   
Kadie   6:00pm – 9:00pm 
 
Clayton fair-weather green 
/Allerton & Thornton. 
Gemma, Jonathan, Sumaiya – 
5:30pm –8.30pm    
 
Toller / Heaton  
Luky, Margret, Khuram, 5:00pm –
8:00pm 
 
            Possibly sessions are until 
10pm, dependent on identified 
need. 
 
 

*Diversionary residential* 
 

 
 
Kim 
07533296879 
 
Gemma 
07582103570 
 
Lucky 
07890970716 
 
 
 
 

Saturday 4th  
November  

  Gemma Booth  
07582103570 
 
Communication 
Lead links 
directly with  
Anthony Casson 
07582100684 
 

 
 

 
Heaton /Toller Response 1  
Luky, Hannah, Miroslav                         
5.00-9.00/10pm  
 
 
Manningham/city Response 2  
Karen, Issaq, Maj                               
5:00pm-9:00pm/10pm  
 
 
Thorton Allerton /CFW Response 3  
Chy, Kim , Jonathan – 5:00pm-
9:00pm/10pm  
 

Lucky 
07890970716 
 
Karren 
07890970715 
 
Chy 
07342657558 
 
 

Page 100



 

18 
 

 
Bradford West Bonfire plan   Communication lead  Green first aider  

• The Communication Lead links directly with Anthony Casson 07582100684 at the start of the 
evening for an update, the communication lead then links in with the outreach and response leads 
ensuring they are in the agreed areas and that all is okay. 

• If the outreach teams identify any issues or concerns then they are to remove themselves from 
that area and feed the information through to the communication lead – If the communication 
lead cannot be contacted then they can contact Heather W directly.  

• The commination lead feeds any information through to Heather, in turn Heather will then decide 
if the response team needs to attend the area. 

• The response team cover in a vehicle the identified West Hot Spots and feed information through 
to the communication lead, they may be asked to attend specific areas including areas across the 
district.  

• Every team is to carry a rucksack that includes a torch, a full first aid bag including cling film & a  
burns kit and a charged mobile phone. All outreach teams are to work in their known areas that 
they cover weekly on detached and not to attend any situation that they feel poses a risk to 
themselves or others – all staff to check in and out for each session and remain in regular 
communication with the communication lead. All teams to have read through the street work 
guidelines in their teams and fully understand and implement these. 

Frizinghall hotspot hub support:  
Maureen & Danielle - 5.00-9.00pm 
 
    Possibly sessions are until 10pm, 
dependent on identified need. 
 
*Diversionary residential* 
 

Sunday 5th 
November 

Peter Lawrence 
07866127283v 
 
Communication 
Lead links 
directly with 
Anthony Casson 
07582100684 
 
 

 Heaton/Toller Response 1 
 Lucky, Hannah, Miroslav 5.00-
9.00pm  
 
Manningham /city Response 2  
Kim,  Karen , Awais,, 5:00-9.00pm  
 
 
Thorton Allerton /CFW Response 3  
Gemma, Chy, Sarah, 5:00-9.00pm  
 
Frizinghall hotspot hub support:  
Kadie & Maj 5.00-9.00pm  
 
Possibly sessions are until 10pm, 
dependent on identified need. 
 
     *Diversionary residential* 

Lucky 
07890970716 
 
Kim 
07533296879 
 
Gemma 
07582103570 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

Report of the Bradford West Area Co-ordinator to the 
meeting of Bradford West Area Committee to be held on 
30th November 2023 

I 
 
Subject:   
 
Allocation Of West Yorkshire Mayor’s Climate Community Grant Scheme (Bradford) 
 
Summary statement: 
 
This report summarises the applications received from eligible local organisations, across 
the Bradford West Constituency, from West Yorkshire Mayor’s Climate Community Grant 
Scheme (Bradford). 
 
EQUALITY & DIVERSITY: 
 
The District Plan and Locality Plans are underpinned by a cross-cutting principle of tackling 
inequality in our communities and sustainability considerations, including reducing our 
carbon footprint.  Applications have been encouraged from across the district, particularly 
from underrepresented communities and communities who need support to meet challenges 
around climate change.  
 
 
 

 
 

David Shepherd 
Strategic Director  Place  
Phone:01274 434748/433761 
E-mail: david.shepherd@bradford.gov.uk 
 

Portfolio:  Cllr Sarah Ferriby  
Healthy People and Places  

Report Contacts: Arshad Mahmood 
Bradford West Area Co-ordinator  
Phone: (01274) 432597 
E-mail: ash.m@bradford.gov.uk 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  Regeneration 
and Environment  
 
  

Page 103

Agenda Item 8/

mailto:david.shepherd@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:ash.m@bradford.gov.uk


 

 
 

1. SUMMARY 
 

This report summarises the applications received from eligible local organisations, across 
the Bradford West Constituency from West Yorkshire Mayor’s Climate Community Grant 
Scheme (Bradford). 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council (CBMDC), via its Constituency Area 

Offices, jointly working with the Sustainability Service, invited applications from eligible 
groups to apply for funding available from West Yorkshire Mayor’s Climate Community 
Grant Scheme (Bradford). 

 
2.2 The grants from this funding were part of a two-stage process – an expression of interest 

form and then, after approval, further grant applications were considered by the Bradford 
West Grants Advisory Group. The West Yorkshire Mayor’s Climate Community Grant 
Scheme (Bradford) had a total budget of £369,000 allocated equally across the five 
areas at £73,800.  

 
2.3 Applications were invited for between £5,000 and £50,000 towards projects and 

services that help take actions to reduce CO2 across the district through initiatives for: 
• Energy – local clean and flexible energy solutions 
• Building – healthy, affordable and efficient community buildings 
• Transport – walking, cycling and public transport 
• Nature – green and climate ready nature and biodiversity solutions 

 
2.3  Projects may include: 

• Developing locally generated clean energy schemes, producing onsite 
energy\renewable energy, for example solar panels and wind turbines; 

• Making community buildings resilient to climate change and increased fuel costs 
through insulation, A-rated appliances, LED lighting or heat pumps – reducing 
consumption and promoting good practice to local residents; 

• Reducing car and fossil fuel usage by making it more appealing to cycle, walk or use 
public transport or 

• Finding ways of working with nature, such as preserving or increasing biodiversity in 
our green spaces, strengthening the link between residents and nature through 
access to green space, local food growing, and creating opportunities for people to 
connect with nature. 

 
2.3 Proposals were encouraged towards projects which were community-led and driven by 

an understanding of local needs. The funding focused on activities that had the potential 
to make a meaningful and lasting difference to the carbon footprint of our diverse 
communities across the district with longer-term benefits. In addition, applications that 
supported long-term changes in behaviour and ways of working and practices positively 
reducing carbon footprints within communities were encouraged.  

 
2.4 The application form and guidance for applicants is attached as Appendix A. A total of 

24 applications were submitted to the Bradford West Area and of these a total of 5 
applications for a combined valued of £73,800 are being recommended for approval 

Page 104



 

 
 

from the Bradford West Area Committee as shown in appendix B. 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 There are no other considerations. 
 
4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 

The West Yorkshire Mayor’s Climate Community Grant Scheme (Bradford) had a 
total budget of £369,000 allocated across the five areas is £73,800. A nominal 
management fee provided project management and admin support of these grants 
through a temporary post.   

 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 There are no known risk management or governance issues. All successful 

applicants are screened to ensure compliance with eligibility criteria and 
organisational eligibility.  

 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 

There are no direct legal implications other than that each successful applicant 
must sign and return a grant agreement which stipulates terms and conditions of 
the awards.  

 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

This funding provides an opportunity to provide financial assistance towards 
creative ideas to test and learn across the district supporting climate change 
environmental improvement, behaviour change and long-term impact.  

 
7.1 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The District Plan and Locality Plan is underpinned by sustainability goals. As the 
priorities have been set using the District Plan, the outcomes achieved from this 
funding help us achieve our district goals on sustainability. 

 
7.2 TACKLING THE CLIMATE EMERGENCY IMPLICATIONS 

This funding directly supports projects and other initiatives working with a range of 
partners on climate friendly projects supporting a transition to become a net zero 
carbon region. 

 
7.3 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no community safety implications arising from this report.   
 
7.4 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 

There are no human rights implications arising from this report. 
 
7.5 TRADE UNION 

There are no trade union implications arising from this report. 
 
7.6 WARD IMPLICATIONS 

This is detailed within the main body of the report and is key to the successful 

Page 105



 

 
 

delivery of the grants allocated, to improve quality of life for residents across the 
Bradford West constituency, to support the Bradford West Ward Plans.  

 
7.7 AREA COMMITTEE LOCALITY PLAN IMPLICATIONS  
  
           As above in 7.6 and to support the Locality Plan 
 
7.8 IMPLICATIONS FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 
 Projects funded from this scheme benefit people from all age groups, communities 

and diverse backgrounds.  
 
7.9 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 There are no issues arising from this report.  
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
 None 
 
9. OPTIONS 
             
9.1       To agree the proposals for the allocation of funding outlined in Appendix B. 
9.2       To amend the proposals for the allocation of funding outlined in Appendix B. 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That the Area Committee agree the proposals for the funding allocations as outlined      

    at Appendix B. 
 

10.2 That the Grants Advisory Group be thanked for their work with this funding. 
.  

 
11. APPENDICES 

Appendix A - Application form for stage 1 and stage 2 
Appendix B - Proposed allocation of funding (to be presented at the Area 
Committee meeting) 

 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
None  
 
  

Page 106



 

 
 

APPRENDIX A 

WY Mayor’s Climate Community Grants Scheme 

Funding Expression of Interest  

This is a two stage application process – please submit this expression of 
interest to Stronger.Communities@bradford.gov.uk by Monday September 4 
2023 
Successful groups will then be contacted to fill in a detailed application, to be 
submitted by Monday 2 October. Grant panel decisions will be issued by Mon 30 
October.  
 
Your Details   

Q1. Name, contact details of Project Lead 

 

 
Project Description 
 

Q2 Which of the four themes does your project address ? (Please tick or cross all that apply) 

• Energy – local clean and flexible energy solutions   
 
• Buildings – healthy, affordable and efficient community buildings 
 
• Transport – walking, cycling and public transport 
 
• Nature – green and climate ready nature solutions 
 
 

Q3 Describe the need your project will address and who you have involved in developing it 
(150 words max) 

 

 
 

Q4. Describe how your project  will make a lasting difference to the carbon footprint in your 
community (150 words max) 

 

 

 
 

Page 107

mailto:Stronger.Communities@bradford.gov.uk


 

 
 

Q5. - How is your project helping to ensure a “just transition” i.e. support for 
disadvantaged communities to be able to reduce carbon footprint (100 words max) 

  

 
 

Q6. What are the intended outputs and outcome(s) that will be achieved? (150 words max)  
EG 
How many people supported to reduce carbon footprint 
Location of the project and beneficiaries – spread of communities with evidenced 
disadvantage 

 

 

 
Project Finances   

Q7. Please provide an outline/breakdown of delivery costs, including any match funding 

 

 

 
Q8. Do you need any technical advice or info to further develop your idea? 

 

 

 

WY Mayor’s Climate Community Grants Scheme 

Application Form 

This is a SECOND STAGE of the application process – please submit this application to 
Stronger.Communities@bradford.gov.uk by Monday 9th October 2023. 

 
Grant panel decisions will be issued by Monday 30th October 2023. 

 
Your Details   
 

Q1. Please provide the following details 

Project Name  
 

 

Organisation Name 
 

 

Page 108

mailto:Stronger.Communities@bradford.gov.uk


 

 
 

Q1. Please provide the following details 

Organisation Main 
Contact  
 

 

Address 
  

 

Postcode 
 

 

Landline telephone 
number 
 

 

Mobile telephone number
  
 

 

Email  
 

 

Constituency of your 
Organisation’s base and 
majority of beneficiaries.
  

Bradford 
East 
☐ 

Bradford 
South 
☐ 

Bradford 
West 
☐ 

Keighley 
 
☐ 

Shipley 
 
☐ 

 
 
Please tick the box if you agree to your details being shared with other parts of the 
Council for climate environment and sustainability purposes? 
 

☐  

  
Q2. What type of organisation is your group? If you are not a constituted group, please state 
this 

☐ Registered charity                                      ☐ Community interest company 
 
☐ Charitable Incorporated Organisation        ☐ Company limited by guarantee 

 
☐ Unincorporated club or association            ☐ Other (Please state) ________________-
______ 
 

 

Q3. Income over last accounting year / Bank name (we use these details to pay your grant) 

 
        £    
 
 

Your Bank:  
 
Bank Address:  
 
Bank Account Number: 

Page 109



 

 
 

 

 

 
Project Description 
 

Q5. Which of the four themes does your project address? (Please tick or all that apply) 

 
☐ Energy – local clean and flexible energy solutions   
 
☐ Buildings – healthy, affordable and efficient community buildings 
 
☐ Transport – walking, cycling and public transport 
 
☐ Nature – green and climate ready nature solutions  

   
Q6. Please tell us how you will ensure that your project is delivered within the required 
timeframe and demonstrate that you have the experience in delivering projects of this scale.            
(300 words max.) 
(Projects must start after 31st December 2023 and complete by 31st December 2024) 

Project start date:  
 
Project end date:   

 
Q7. What would you like to do with your grant? Please specify what activities will take place, 
how will these achieve behaviour change and raise awareness for climate action.                  
(300 words max.) 

  

 
Impact 
 

 
Bank Sort Code: 

  

Q4. Staffing and Volunteers 

How many of the following are involved in the organisation? 
 

☐  Full time staff / workers:   ☐  Part time staff / workers: 
  

☐  Volunteers (excl. management committee):  ☐  Management committee: 
  

Page 110



 

 
 

Q8. Please provide a summary of what your project aims to achieve (Outputs and Outcomes). 
In addition, how this project supports delivery of the locality and ward plans?                 (500 
words max.) 

 

 
Q9. How many people will benefit from this funding? Please only tell us about the people 
specifically accessing this service, not the number of people your whole service supports.  
Please also explain how you will capture this information.                                                                                     
(300 words max.) 

 

 
 

Q10. Beneficiaries (Please tick any beneficiary groups who will benefit from your grant) 

☐ Black, Asian and minority ethnic  ☐ Carers 
☐ Children and young people  ☐ Ex-offenders/offenders/At risk of offending 
☐ Families/Parents/Lone parents  ☐ Homeless people 
☐ Lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgendered groups  ☐ Local residents 
☐ Long-term unemployed  ☐ Men 
☐ Not in education, employment & training (NEET 16-24)  ☐ Older people 
☐ People with alcohol/drug addictions  ☐ People in care or suffering serious illness 
☐ People with learning difficulties  ☐ People with low skill levels 
☐ People with mental health issues  ☐ People with multiple disabilities 
☐ People with physical difficulties  ☐ People living in poverty 
☐ Victims of crime/violence/abuse  ☐ Women 

 
 

Page 111



 

 
 

Q11. Ethnicity (Please tick any ethnic groups who will benefit from your grant) 

☐ White  ☐ Any other 
☐ White Irish  ☐ White British 
☐ White Gypsies and Travellers  ☐ White East European 
☐ Black Caribbean and White  ☐ Mixed 
☐ Asian and White  ☐ Black African and White 
☐ All ethnicities  ☐ Other Mixed Ethnicity 
☐ Indian  ☐ Asian and Asian British 
☐ Bangladeshi  ☐ Pakistani 
☐ Black and Black British  ☐ Other Asian 
☐ African  ☐ Caribbean 
☐ Chinese  ☐ Other Black  

 
Q12. Age Groups (Please tick any applicable age groups for your grant) 

☐ Early years (0-4)      ☐ Children (5-12) 
☐ Young people (13-18)  ☐ Young adults (19-25) 
☐ Adults (26-65)  ☐ Seniors (65+) 

 
 

Page 112



 

 
 

Project Budget  
 

Q13. Please tell us about the total cost of the project, and make it clear what our grant would pay for. 
(Grants are between £5,000 and £50,000)  

 

 

 

Breakdown of costs 

 Item Cost 
 

 

 

 

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Total Cost  

 
Q14. What would be the minimum amount of funding required to make your project work and 
how would you demonstrate that your proposal demonstrates value for money?                           
(300 words max.) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 113



 

 
 

Q15. If the total cost of your project is greater than the amount you are applying for, please tell 
us how you will fund the project i.e. match funding, contribution in kind. If there are any other 
agencies involved with this project, please list their names and contribution.                                             
(300 words max.) 

 

 

 

 
Supporting Documents   
 

Please attach the following supporting documents with your application (*if you are an 
organisation that requires these documents/policies) 

 
☐ Constitution or governing document  ☐ Two quotations for each item of 
expenditure 
 
☐ Bank statement (no older than 3 months)  ☐ Child Protection Policy* 
 
☐ If registered charity, your latest accounts.   ☐ Copy of last audited accounts* 
 
☐ Equal Opportunities Policy*                          ☐ Health and Safety Policy* 
 
☐ Vulnerable Adults Policy* 
 
  

 
 
Consent 
 

Please tick the box below to confirm that you give permission for the City of Bradford 
Metropolitan District Council to record the information in this form. 

We give permission for City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council to record and process 
the information in this form electronically and in paper form and to contact our organisation by 
phone, mail or email with regard to this application. We agree that this information can be 
shared with the funder and members of the decision-making panel. 

We understand and agree that should we be successful, we will be required to comply with 
the funding terms and conditions.  

Page 114



 

 
 

Please tick the box below to confirm that you give permission for the City of Bradford 
Metropolitan District Council to record the information in this form. 

We understand that we will have to account for any money awarded, by retaining any receipts 
to show how the grant was spent, and you agree you will complete an evaluation form.  

We understand that we will be required to take part in appropriate and proportionate 
promotions (we will not ask you to identify service users), such as donor visits, publicly 
acknowledging the funding for example on social media (if you use it) or by taking part in 
case studies. 

☐ Yes 

Name: 

Position: 

Date:  
 

 

 
Choose an item. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 115



    APPRENDIX B 

 
 

 
 
 

P
age 116


	Agenda
	6 BRADFORD WEST LOCALITY PLAN - PROGRESS UPDATE 2022/23
	BWE30NovDocG AppA
	BWE30NovDocG AppB

	7 YOUTH SERVICE UPDATE - BRADFORD WEST
	8 ALLOCATION OF WEST YORKSHIRE MAYOR'S CLIMATE COMMUNITY GRANT SCHEME (BRADFORD)
	WY Mayor’s Climate Community Grants Scheme
	Funding Expression of Interest
	WY Mayor’s Climate Community Grants Scheme
	Application Form


